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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to report that the Xpress Group has delivered
an impressive set of results for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Company has changed its English and Chinese name from
“China Credit Holdings Limited # Bz E&£B AR A A", to
“Xpress Group Limited & & B F R A 7 ”. This coincides with
the Group’s core focus in travel and hospitality businesses and
our vision of becoming a leading travel and hospitality service
provider serving global communities.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group achieved historic highs in turnover of HK$689 million,
representing an increase of HK$244 million or 55% from the
corresponding period last year. Net profit amounted to
HK$40.1 million, compared to HK$53.1 million for 2006. Earnings
per share amountfed to HK 2.35 cents (2006: HK 3.27 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Division

The travel division operates through a number of subsidiaries
including:

. Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd (*Anglo-French”), a Singapore
company which focuses on corporate travel for small and
medium enterprises, government statutory boards, MNCs
and global companies’ leisure travel. These include land
packages and tours, "MICE” (Meetings - Incentives -
Conventions - Exhibitions) and wholesale agent airline
ticketing businesses. Anglo-French ranked number 11
amongst 209 Billing and Settlement Plan Agenfts in
Singapore (source: IATA). This ranking includes corporate
ficketing, leisure, "MICE” and wholesale agents. During
the year, Anglo-French contributed HK$481 million to the
Group’s turnover.

o Nihon Kotfsu Travel Service Co. Ltd. ("Nikko"), a Japan
company 100% acquired in June 2006, was established
and granted a first class travel agent license in 1962. Since
then, Nikko has developed and extended its businesses
including corporate travel and both domestic and
overseas leisure travel. Nikko’s package tour is operated
under the brand name “Try Tour” which is widely
recognized as a wholesale market leader for packages
tfo Hong Kong, Okinawa and Korea.

In 2003, Nikko was incorporated as a 100% subsidiary of
Nihon Kotsu Co. Ltd. and started frading as Nikko Travel
Service Co. Ltd. It is now responsible for all fravel related
businesses formerly undertaken by Nihon Kotsu Co. Ltd.
and has offices in Tokyo and Osaka.
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Chairman’s Statement

Makino Air Travel Service Ltd (*Makino”), a Japan
company 52% acquired in March 2007, is a well
established travel agency in Sapporo City, Hokkaido,
Japan founded in 1961. It has over 700 corporate clients
from the private sector to official bodies including
government offices in Hokkaido. In addition fo corporate
clients service, its major leisure product is FIT golf package
under product brand name ‘M-GOLF" which is well known
at Hokkaido. Makino holds IATA and Tst category license
in Hokkaido.

Hotels and Hospitality Division

The hotel and hospitality division operates through a number
of subsidiaries including:

04

Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. ("Sapporo”), a Japan company
100% acquired in July 2006, was established on 8 March
2004 for the purpose of operating investments, inns and
hotels. Its principal asset is a hotel known as Hamilton
Hotel located in Chuo Ward, Sapporo City, Japan.

Hamilton Hotel is an eight-storey building erected over a
one-level basement. It comprises a toftal of 103
guestrooms of various types including a Japanese room,
a meeting room, a haircut saloon, a Japanese restaurant
and esthetic saloon. The total gross floor area of Hamilton
Hotel is approximately 3,209 square meters.

After the year end date, the Group further expand its
hotel portfolio by acquiring two hotel holdings companies,
Aizuya Co. Ltd (“Aizuya”) and Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co.
Ltd.("Hotel Plaza Miyazaki”)

Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is located at Southern side of Japan
Kyushu Island, Miyazaki City is the second largest city on
Kyushu Island. It is one of the well-known hotels situated
at the center of city, 10 minutes from Miyazaki Station
along Oyodogawa riverside. The hotel has 164 rooms
provides full service including 15 different size banquet
rooms, 4 meeting rooms, a river view sky restaurant/
lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, 1 karaoke room, 1 bar
and 1 lobby lounge. In addition, the hotel has a natural
hot spring spa facility with in and out door hot spring
bath, sauna and massage service open to staying guest
and day use visitor.

Aizuya is a traditional Japanese hot spring inn located at
Nasu, Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort area
which is approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo
downtown. It has fotal 22 rooms including 2 rooms with
hot spring open bath. It can accommodate ftotal over 60
guests at one time. Facilities include 2 large hot spring
baths, 2 private hot spring open baths for staying guest
exclusive use at charter base, 2 massage rooms serve
female clients only, 1 restaurant server dinner & breakfast
and 1 souvenir shop including Aizuya private label item
such as Sake, Soba (Japanese noodle) etc.
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Chairman’s Statement

Credit Card Division

The credit card business of the Group is operated through
Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”). The economy was
robust in the past one year, coupled with steady employment
and consumer spending propelled the business environment
to improve. As a result, the credit card holders tend to repay
the outstanding retail spending and the Credit Card business
recorded a turnover of approximately HKS$7.8 million,
representing a mild increase of 1.3% from 2006.

As of October 2006, the name of Online Credit Card Limited
has been changed to Xpress Finance Limited to better
represent our consumer finance business and the Group’s
direction. During the year, Xpress Finance rolled out a series of
marketing initiatives and launched its i Xpress MasterCard
(www.ixpresscard.com), the first fully customisable MasterCard
in the Asia Pacific region. This new and innovative credit card
allows customers to design the whole card face and select
their preferred interest/cash rebate combination. Xpress
Finance received "The Most Innovative Online Program Launch
in 2006” award from MasterCard Worldwide in recognition of
the success of the i Xpress program. By using the customized
card platform, Xpress Finance issues the first customized
MasterCard gift card in Hong Kong - i Xpress Gift Card.

On the sales and marketing frontier, we continue to run proven
programs such as product installment and cash installment
plans, merchant joint promotions, and bonus point promotions,
cash rebate incentives and various other initiatives that
stimulate consumer spending.

SINGXPRESS LTD

As at 31 March 2007, the Group held 45.68% of SingXpress Ltd
(formerly known as Futuristic Group Ltd.) ("SingXpress”), a
Singapore listed associate of the Group.

On June 2006, SingXpress entered info an agreement to sell its
entire direct and indirect shareholding in the companies which
conduct all its store fixtures and interior fit-out business, all the
assets, rights and liabilities owed by SingXpress used in the
conduct of the future store business for a consideration of
US$1.25 million. Following that, SingXpress has developed its
new fravel businesses and intfends to leverage on the Group’s
expertise, to develop consumer finance and spending
products such as credit cards and loyalty cards.

RSI INTERNATIONAL SYSTEMS INC.

The Group holds approximately 19% in RSI Infernational Systems
Inc. ("RSI”), a dynamic public company head-quartered in
North Vancouver, British Columbia. RSI has been providing
computerized property management and reservation systems
to the hotel & resort industry since 1978. Today, satisfied
customers across North America and Europe are using ifs
proven web-based software solutions for virtually every type of
property and accommodation management application
including real-time online reservations capability.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group is working with RSI to take advantage of its hotel
industry and information technology expertise fo complement
our travel and hotel related businesses.

NOVENA HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group holds approximately 16% in Novena Holdings Limited
(“Novena”), a Singapore based listed company that is known
as a consumer lifestyle player in furniture and beauty products.
Its range of furniture, marketed under the brands Novena,
Modern Living, The White Collection, Natural Living, Castilla
Design, Castilla Modern, Castilla Premium, Art of Living and
Living Lifestyle, caters fo the needs of different consumer
lifestyles. Novena’s comprehensive range of beauty products
and services, typically beauty and personal care items, are
marketed under the household name of Beaute Spring. Over
the years, Novena has received numerous awards in
recognition of their superior business operations. These include
the prestigious Superbrands Award which recognizes some of
the world’s greatest brands and the Singapore Promising Brand
Award which recognizes SMEs which have shown outstanding
performance in brand communication. Novena strives to
continuously upgrade its production and merchandising values
in order to provide the best retail experience, products and
services.

SKYWEST LIMITED

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire stake in
Skywest, by accepting an off market offer from Advent Air
Limited (*Advent”) for all the fully paid ordinary shares in
Skywest. The disposal was completed in August 2006.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group’s acquired HK$93.4 million property
investments in Singapore and Japan. Property investments
have performed well, with higher rents and increases in fair-
valuation changes of HK$78.4 million.

OUTLOOK

We will continue our business strategy of focusing on the travel,
leisure and hospitality businesses as well as our consumer
finance and the credit card business. The Board and
management will continue to focus on the strafegic
development of the Group through strategic partners and
alliances, the development of our own brand names to
achieve international recognition and achieving economies
of scale for our existing businesses.

The market outlook is expected to be strong in the year ahead.
Despite a competitive environment, the growth in consumer
spending and borrowing, lower unemployment rates and
changes in lifestyle will create an opportunity of growth for our
leisure and hospitality businesses and a demand for consumer
loans.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group will continue in its direction fo diversify its business
risk through the expansion and development of its existing
businesses in corporate finance, consumer finance, credit
cards, and travel related activity outside of Hong Kong with a
strong focus on Singapore, the PRC and Japan. The Group
seeks to create synergies in the activities and businesses it
currently has and will undertake in future. The Group’s cash
position remains healthy which, together with the continued
growth of our core businesses and prudent investment
strategies, makes us highly competitive. We strive to take
advantage of new opportunities and develop new strengths
and strategies o thrive in a different world.

Japan Xpress Ltd, in addition to Nikko and Makino’s existing
businesses, intfends to open fravel stores nationwide in Tokyo,
Osaka and other cities in the next 12 to 24 months. Nikko also
plans to be the leading operator in outbound tour groups to
Hong Kong, the PRC and Singapore in addifion to its Korean
destinations.

In line with our hotel and hospitality business development, the
Xpress Hotels and Resorts division infends to aggressively
acquire hotel properties in Japan and develop links between
their businesses and our consumer finance and consumer
loyalty programs.

We have entered into a letter of confirmation with a security
house in Japan fo study the feasibility of applying for a
secondary listing of and a quotation for its shares on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange and looking forward fo increase the name
awareness of the Group and the shareholder value.

Xpress Finance will continue to design tailor made card
acquisition programs, spending and retention programs to
increase card base and card usage. The unique features of
i Xpress card customization have been widely accepted by
the customers, we will continue capture new market segments
and its distribution network by issuing affinity/co-branded credit
card using this customization platform. To satisfy different
demands in the consumer finance market, we also plan to
extend its credit services to personal loans to attract quality
customers by launching purpose loans program, such as travel
loans. The Group will also pursue a regional expansion of its
credit card and other consumer lending services.

Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZTZT+HFFR
TRHBE

AEERBEEEHEEBR TS - EBEPRH M
¥ PERAAXAEFEANNIMEE  BRARERD
XBE HERGFE GERARRKEHEBEIDHEFR
BER  UDBEEKRR - AKRERER B A
BAERBREAN 2 ERHEE R ERDAHER R
7@ AEFEZRSRRNETRE  HAKEZL
EBFBERRIETRERERRE  <K@HF
NEFRRES AKRERBERSATHE XK
NR&GHED KRR - BRETRRE T EL
Bk e

B% Nikko & Makinoz 33 B 2 #5) + Japan Xpress
LdBERART+ZE=_+HEANBEBERR
ABR R E 3 T R s B M 2 B AN Z IR1T 4L © BRIA
2B A5 H B Ah + Nikko hst BIRATAESRS « &
B K T AN 2 St B - 7 SROBK B A i L S S B
ZEHE—EENG -

ABEAGAEEBETNBERRAFEBZ2EE
Xpress Hotels [z Resorts 7 5B #t 7& 16 U B8 B 78 2 8
EWME UWANAEEEGHASEEREFER
HEREGE 2BABE -

AEBEHE-FEAABSTAILERE @ AR
REERNERRESRDHMES - LT RRE
ZHTE UEERAEEARERBREE -

B EEEEEBRAEEZ WEBEARENT
FTE UEREBEEBRERRSBEERAE
AREFEMEEAFRERE - i Xpress=MEAA
b2 RHUEEARFES SEHBHEEERLHE
MEFEBBETHEB HMEERR  UWFERHTH
REZTRLL  BUESHEHEEEMSBZTASE
Kk AEENGEEREGERBEBAER -
EHHUOREEREREEXRTERAEER
F - AEENEREESHRREMEZRRRE
SREEERR -

07



dH
TS
Vi
J |
ant
<
S
ol

Xpress Group Limited o 453

Chairman’s Statement

APPRECIATION

The record performance for the past year would not be
possible without the excellent teamwork, passion and
dedication of our staff worldwide. The Board therefore wishes
to extend its appreciation fo the team for their achievements
and looks forward to their continued commitment.

It is also my pleasure to thank all my fellow Board members for
the wisdom and guidance rendered so unstintingly throughout
a challenging year.

Yours sincerely,
For and on behalf of the Board
CHAN HENG FAI

Managing Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover generated from continuing
operation of approximately HK$689 million for the year ended
31 March 2007, representing an increase of approximately
54.9% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2006. The
increase in furnover was mainly due to the acquisition of Nihon
Kotsu Travel Service Co. Ltd. (*Nikko”) and Sapporo Holdings
Co. Ltd ("Sapporo”) in June 2006 and July 2006 respectively
which contributed HK$157 million to the Group’s turnover. The
profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March
2007 was approximately HKS$40.1 million as compared to the
HK$53.1 million in 2006.

The earnings per share for the year was HK2.35 cents when
compared with HK3.27 cents in last year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the Company raised
approximately HK$19.2 million from the exercise of warrants
resulting in the issue of approximately 122.3 million shares. Bank
balance and cash amounted fo approximately HKS191.6
million (3.31.2006: HK$372.8 million).

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s current ratio was 3.47
(3.31.2006: 6.8) and had a gearing ratio of 4.1%, defined as
the ratio of total borrowings less cash balances to total assets
when compare with the net cash of approximately HK$260.3
million in 2006.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

(a) Acquisition of properties
During the year, the Group entered intfo a sale and
purchase agreement to purchase a residential property
located in Singapore at a consideration of approximately
§$$3.75 million.

(b) Disposal of investment in Skywest

During the year, the Group sold its entire stake in Skywest
Limited ("Skywest”). It made an offer to Advent Air Limited
(“"Advent”), a UK listed company which indirectly holds
approximately 60.34% of Skywest’s tfotal issued shares, to
sell its shares in Skywest. Advent then announced that it
intended, through its wholly owned subsidiary, fo make
an off-market offer for all the fully paid ordinary shares in
Skywest. The Group accepted the offer and disposal was
completed in August 2006.

(c) Acquisition of a travel service company

During the year, the Group entered intfo a sale and
purchase agreement for the acquisition of the entire
equity inferest in Nihon Kotsu Travel Services Co., Ltd., a
fravel service company operating in Japan, at a
consideration of Japanese Yen 135 million.
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(d) Acquisition of a hotel holding company

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for the acquisition of the
shareholder’s loan and the entire equity interest in
Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd., a hotel holding company
operating in Japan. The details of which can be referred
fo the circular of the Company dated 24 August 2006.

(e) Disposal of a property
During the year, the Group entered info an agreement
for the disposal of a property located in Singapore at a
consideration of approximately $$3 million.

() Acquisition of properties
During the year, the Group entered info agreements to
purchase 19 unifs and 1 retail shop of investment
properties located in Singapore at an aggregate
consideration of approximately $$13.5 million.

(9) Disposal of interior fit-out business of SingXpress Ltd

(formerly known as Futfuristic Group Ltd)
("SingXpress”)
The interior fit-out business was operated through
SingXpress, the Group’s Singapore listed associate, of
which as at 31 March 2007, the Group held a 45.68%
interest in.

During the year, SingXpress entered into a conditional
agreement to sell its entire direct and indirect
shareholding in the companies which conduct all its store
fixtures and interior fit-out business, all the assets, rights
and liabilities owned by SingXpress used in the conduct
of the future store business for a consideration of US$1.25
million. The transactions were completed in November
2006. SingXpress has developed its new travel businesses
and is infend to leverage on its tfravel business and on the
consumer finance expertise of its major shareholder,
Xpress Group Limited to develop consumer finance and
spending products such as credit cards and loyalty cards.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had authorized and
contracted capital commitments of approximately HK$62.4
million, which was related to capital expenditure for the
acquisition of investment properties and approximately HK$35
million which was related to the rights issue of SingXpress Ltd.,
an associate of the Group, in which the Group has undertaken
fo fake up the Group’s enfitlements and fo subscribe for all
rights shares not subscribed for by the other shareholders of
SingXpress Ltd.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assefs and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, Japanese
yen and Singapore dollars. Due to the currency peg of the
Hong Kong dollars to the U.S. dollars, the exchange rate
between these two currencies has remained stable and thus
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Management Discussion and Analysis

no hedging or other alternatives have been implemented by
the Group. The Group expected that there is no significant
exposure on foreign currency, but it cannot be assured
operating results in future will not be materially affected.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s credit policy defines the credit extension criteria,
the credit approval and monitoring processes, and the loan
provisioning policy. The Group maintains tight control on loan
assessments and approvals and will continue to exercise a
conservative and prudent policy in granting loans in order to
maintain a quality loan portfolio and manage the credit risk
exposure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart
from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
provident fund, medical insurance and performance related
bonus. At the balance sheet date, there were approximately
250 employees employed by the Group. Share options may
also be granted fo eligible employees and persons of the
Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged bank
balances of HKS4.4 million as a security for banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary and as securities for the credit card
business fransactions with MasterCard Worldwide. The Group’s
borrowings of HK$178 million were mainly secured by the
investment properties and land and buildings of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$295 million, bank
balance with carrying value of HK$4 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, confingent liabilities of the Group
were as follows:

(a) Guarantees of HK$11.4 million (3.31.2006: HK$10.7 million)
given fo financial institutions in respect of banking facilities
granted to the Group’s suppliers.

(b) At the balance sheet date, the Company has given
guarantees to financial institutions in respect of banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries of HK$93 million.

(c) Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and CASH
Retail Management Group Limited (formerly known as
Pricerite Group Limited) (together referred to as
“Pricerite”) respectively, against a subsidiary of the
Company, in respect of the alleged breach of agreement
for damages which are not quantified. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not practicable at this stfage to
determine with certainty the outcome of the litigation.
The litigation has been standstill for more than 6 years.
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Xpress Group Limited ¢ $3EEBHR QA
Directors and Managment Profile

Brief biographical information of the directors and senior
management of the Group are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 62, is the Managing Chairman of the
Company. He has been a director of the Company since
September 1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business
development of the Group. His experience and expertise are
in the finance and banking sectors. He is the spouse of Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 32, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Chan began his career by working in
two international companies as an investment banker
specialising in Asian equity financial products. Subsequently,
Mr. Chan worked for a finance and technology company in
the United States as the Chief Operating Officer with a focus
on ifs investment banking and merchant banking activities.
Mr. Chan joined the Group as a non-executive director in
January 2000, was appointed as an executive director in
September 2002 and was appointed as Managing Director in
August 2003. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree
with honours, with a Finance specialization, from the University
of British Columbia. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai
and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 28, the Chief Executive Officer and
a Director of the Company, is responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s business. Previously, Mr. Chan
was in charge of the overall management of Xpress Finance
Limited (*Xpress Finance”), the Group’s credit card business,
and also has experience in technical and business
development in the finance and technology industries. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science with honours
and a Master’s Degree in Electro-Mechanical Engineering with
honours. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 58, has been a director of the
Company since January 1992. She is responsible for the general
administration and financial planning of the Group. She has
over 25 years’ experience in financial management and
administration. Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 36, has been a director of
the Company since 1995. Ms. Chan is involved with the
securities operations. Ms. Chan has previous experience with
one of the leading banks in Hong Kong where she was involved
in sales and marketing as well as relationship management for
the Regional Securities office. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr.
Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.
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Directors and Managment Profile

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 58. Mr. Fong is a Director of Fong
Law Corporation, a legal practice. He is also Chairman of the
Disciplinary Committee of SGX-ST. Prior to that, Mr. Fong sat on
the Securities Industry Council between 1992 and 2003. He was
also a Council Member of the Law Society of Singapore from
1990 to 1992. He is a director of several public listed
companies.

Mr. Fong graduated from the University of Singapore with a
LL.B. (Honours). In 1976/77 he was awarded the Colombo Plan
Award fo attend the Government Legal Officer’s Course in the
United Kingdom. In 1986, he aftended the NITA (Natfional
Institute of Trial Advocates) Advocacy Programme at Harvard
Law School. Mr. Fong appointed to the Board in 1995.

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 65, has over 31 years experience
in the fashion industry including disfribution, sourcing,
overseeing manufacturing and exporting to international
clients in France, the United Kingdom, Germany and the United
States. Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-
executive director in September 1998,

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo, aged 56, has over 20 years’
experience in human resources, China trade and real estates
industry. Mr. Da Roza was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in July 2004.

Ms. Chian Yat Ping, aged 42, obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree from the State University of New York at Albany. She is
a certified public accountant admitted to practise in USA and
had eight years working for international CPA firms. She is
an international affiliate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chian was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in September 2006.
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Xpress Group Limited ¢ $3EEBHR QA
Directors and Managment Profile

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 36, is the qualified accountant
and Financial Controller of the Group and responsible for the
financial and management reporting of the Group, including
internal control and policy review, taxation, audit, legal and
regulatory affairs. He has 13 years in public accounting,
taxation, and financial consultancy and management in Hong
Kong. He worked with an international accounting firm prior to
joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising). He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 43, is the joint Company Secretary
and the Senior Manager, Corporate Services of the Group
responsible for the corporate secretarial function of the Group.
Mr. Yuen is also the Chief Operating Officer of Xpress Finance
responsible for compliance, human resources, sales &
marketing, customer service and general administration of
Xpress Finance. Mr. Yuen has over 15 years’ experience in
corporate secretarial, business development, human resources
and general administration. Prior to joining Xpress Finance in
June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups and a financial
institution. Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute, the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management, the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
and the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing & Supply and an
associate member of Institute of Financial Planners of Hong
Kong and Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Mr. Oyama, Masahiro, aged 45, is the Managing Director of
Japan Xpress Limited (“Japan Xpress”). He has experience at
airlines sales & marketing as well as travel agent operation /
management since graduation. Subsequently, he has
extended his career with marketing service and entertainment
business in Japan, as the Managing Director. Mr. Oyama is
responsible for the business development in Japan.

Mr. Cheung Kai Yip, Frederick, aged 49, is an Executive Director
of Japan Xpress since its establishment in 2005. Mr. Cheung
began his career with then Hong Kong Tourist Association as
marketing & PR executive for Japan market. Subsequently, Mr.
Cheung worked for a 5-star hotel in Hong Kong and was a
director of a travel agent in Japan. Mr. Cheung has over 20
years experience in tourism industry and is fluent in Japanese.
Mr. Cheung is responsible for Japan Xpress’s overall operations
and liaison with Hong Kong head office.
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Directors and Managment Profile

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Sakamoto, Atsukuni, aged 44, is an Executive Director of
Japan Xpress since its establishment in 2005. He brings to Japan
Xpress his marketing communications expertise gained through
working at advertising/public relations agencies for both
Japanese and international clients. He has over 20 years
experience in event management, communication ftools
development and crisis communications management. He
earned a university degree with a major in Fine Art in the United
States in 1984,

Mr. Yamaguchi, Susumu, aged 60, joined Japan Xpress as an
Executive Director since June 2006. He is responsible for Japan
Xpress's travel business development.

He started his career with Nippon Travel Agency, the second
largest travel agent in Japan after graduation. He has vast
and broad experience in travel business, from negotiation with
airlines, hotels, to planning of wholesale product to destfination
all over the world. During his career with Nippon Travel Agency,
he had 2 major appointments: Deputy Director for East Japan,
which is the major market area in Japan and Managing
Director of Nippon Travel Agency Europe Company based in
London. He had engaged in establishing the European
company to develop inbound tour operation and outbound
business by setting up offices in all over Europe. His last
appointment before joining Japan Xpress was Managing
Director of Gullivers Travel Associates in Japan, a Europe base
worldwide tour operator.

Mr. Tuan Quang Tran, aged 51, joined as the Chief Executive
Officer of SingXpress Ltd., Singapore in June 2007. Mr. Tran has
over 30 years of experience covering global corporate business
management across the world, he is widely traveled and has
strong background in multicultural management.

Mr. Tran was from the airline service multinational SITA where
he joined in June 2001 as the Regional Vice President for North
Asia, based in Seoul, and was responsible for the development
and management of the business in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Korea,
Japan and Micronesia, with the sales force in these countries.
Mr. Tran and his family moved from Singapore to Seoul for this
posting.

In 2004 Mr. Tran returned to the SITA RHQ in Singapore fo
assume the position of Head of Business Sales, Asia Pacific,
with key focus on enabling SITA’s business strategy into the
aviation industry and was responsible for the new business sales
and revenue retention in the region.

Prior to SITA, Mr. Tran was from Cable and Wireless ("C&W") a
global Telecommunications mulfinational where he joined in
London, UK and was subsequently posted to Indonesia and
then Singapore in various roles, but lastly as the Regional
Director and General Manager for Solutions - Asia, responsible
for business and alliance development and the delivery of
advanced IP solutions particularly to the financial industry.
During his nine years career with C&W, Mr. Tran also managed
the technical and system architecture of the email network,
and developed the IT consultancy arm for Omnes, C&W'’s joint
venture in Indonesia. Prior to this, Mr. Tran was a senior
manager in charge of the network planning and
implementation at British Gas in the UK.

Of British nationality, Mr. Tran is currently based in Singapore.
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Xpress Group Limited ¢ $3EEBHR QA

Directors and Managment Profile

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Albert Hong Heng Chow, aged 45, is the Chief Executive
Officer of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. ("AFT"). He began his
career with AFT since 1983 and has risen from the ranks
handling operations and sales to his present position
responsible for AFT’s entire business development and
operations. With over 24 years of experience in the fravel
industry, Mr. Hong has built an exceptional working relationship
with both local and overseas hoteliers, airlines and suppliers
and amassed a vast wealth of knowledge and experience in
both corporate business travel and leisure and M.I.C.E. business
where has has constantly, successfully orchestrated and
executed countless conferences, events (both local and
overseas), travel fairs and off-shore land arrangements for
berthing major cruise liners - a responsibility that requires much
detailing and co-ordination. Mr. Hong serves as a Deputy
Chairman of the G13 Travel Management Alliance, a
consorfium of 15 Travel Management companies in Singapore,
with a total annual turnover of S$900m. He is also an agency
representative on the Executive Council - Singapore
Internatonal Air Transport Association (IATA) under NATAS
(National Association Travel Agents Singapore) umbrella.

Mr. Lee Chun Ting, Alex, aged 50, is the Managing Director of
SingXpress Travel Pte Ltd. Mr. Lee is responsible for the strategic
planning and development, sales and marketing of the travel
services for Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr. Lee has 19 years’
practical experience in and solid understanding of a diverse
range of business management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Lee worked as key management staff in several major travel
services companies both in Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr.
Lee was the Chairman of Outbound Tours Operators’
Association (OTOA) from 1998-2002 and a Director of the Hong
Kong Travel Industry Council (TIC) from 1996-2004.

Mr. Fujii, Michihiko, aged 45, is the Executive Assistant fo
Directors of Japan Xpress. He is responsible for the corporate
secretarial and compliance function of Japan Xpress. Mr. Fuijii
has over 20 years banking and real estate business experience
since graduation. He brings notary public, financial and real
estate expertise to Japan Xpress. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in economics and laws.

Mr. Chong You Hwa, aged 45, is the Information Technology
Manager of Xpress Finance in charge of the information
technology and electronic data processing functions since
October 1996. Prior to joining Xpress Finance, Mr. Chong has
worked as Technical Services Section Head for a credit card
company in Malaysia. Mr. Chong has over 12 years system
experience in the credit card industry.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 36, is the Senior Accountant of
the Group. He is responsible for the financial reporting of the
Group and focus on the credit card business. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and he joined the
Group in 1997.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services fo its subsidiaries.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set
out in notes 18 and 19 respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 33.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 15 and 17 to the financial
statements, respectively.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March 2007
are set out on page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up fo the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel (retired on 23 August 2006)
Chan Tung Moe (appointed on 3 July 2007)

Non-executive director;
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive directors:

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Da Roza Joao Paulo
Chian Yat Ping (appointed on 25 September 2006)
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Alternate directors:

Lau Kwok Fai (alternate to Chan Heng Fai)
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s
Articles of Associatfion, Mr. Chan Tung Moe and Ms. Chian Yat
Ping retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The term of office of each non-executive director
and independent non-executive director is the period up to
his retirement by rotation and each one of them can be re-
appointed in accordance with the above arficles.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entfered in the register referred
to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity
EEME 51

Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner
SR BEmfEE A

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Held by trust (note 1)

EsEs A (Bat1)

Held by controlled
corporations (note 2)

Chan Yoke Keow
PR 15

FRES 2 AR FHE (Hat2)

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Held by spouse (note 3)
HEEBEE (Kfit3)

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

BROR =

18

EEERES

BEESE
ZEE (REBZETES)
Wooldridge Mark Dean (B EEz B TEEH)

BRBEARABZRBEBKERARNET8RTE - K
BREERE-FRIABESE  HAERA
PR IEEE - BIFATEZRBYFATESRL
THERE EA@ARmESRRLE - BHARIE
AR BERAE -

EENRF2ER
R-ZEZLF=A=+—"H EFREARQATE
TBRABRARB R EERBEER (EERES
EBEGD ([ExRBEGED]) EXVE) 2 K
n - HEROREST  BEREBEESRBERH
PIEXVE R 7R F8D BEME AR F KRBT
BELAR (BRESFREES RAEGIZSG
X EERRIEER 2 ERIAR)  AREES
KBRS 15 B 5 35216 /A B U N a& IR Pt B RO T 2 #
mERR - IRBELEWRAME LT RRESE
TEFRXZGNRETAAMNEARA RERZTZ
B SORRMT

7R

(o) FXRAREREEOOIETZEBER

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
s &7 AR D R B #AT
ZERHAE [ =RV e
%

228,834,647 13.04
34,580,802 1.97
65,706,960 3.74
578,935,547 32.99
679,223,309 38.70
1,146,832 0.07
3.416,000 0.19
4,562,832 0.26
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Name of director

EEnS

Fong Kwok Jen
20 48

Chan Tong Wan
BR 4t &

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
EEH%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Share options

Name of director

EEnS

Chan Heng Fai
(CREY

Chan Yoke Keow
R E 5

Chan Tong Wan
BR &t &

Chan Sook Jin,
Mary-ann
R &

Fong Kwok Jen
20 [ 48

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
&%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping
B—F

Date
granted

i B8

11.1.2004
11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.1.2004
11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.22.2006

11.15.2004

11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.27.2005
12.21.2006

Capacity

515

Beneficial owner
EnEA A

Beneficial owner

BEDEEA

los)

eneficial owner
E A A

i

\

Beneficial owner
E=mfEAA

Held by spouse (note 4)
HEBEE (Kfitd)

Exercisable
period

AT AT EHR

11.1.2004 -5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 -5.8.2013

11.1.2004 -5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.22.2006 -5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.28.2005 -5.8.2013

1.30.2007 -5.8.2013

Annual Report 2007

ESEREE

(b) BRE

Exercise
price per
share

BR
TEE
HKS
BT

0.1600
0.1616
0.1566

0.1600
0.1616

0.1616
0.1566

0.1616

0.1500
0.1566

=

Number of

issued ordinary

shares held
e T
ZERHE

3,828,000

5,423,837

280,000

4,800

460,000

464,800

922,617,425

Number of

share options
outstanding

as at the Latest
Practicable Date

—BRLEER

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
HARD RS BT
RAEHE

%

0.22

0.31

0.02

0.00

0.03

0.03

52.57

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company

RE&E®RTTAS RN
& RAITHEZ 2 BITRA
BRERE Aokt

%

15,000,000 0.85
147,000,000 8.38
120,000,000 6.84
15,000,000 0.86
35,000,000 2.00
15,000,000 0.86
5,000,000 0.28
5,000,000 0.28
8,000,000 0.46
3,000,000 0.17
2,000,000 0.11
2,000,000 0.11
372,000,000 21.20
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(c) Warrants
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Name of director
EEHE

Chan Heng Fai
fR 1B

Chan Yoke Keow
[

Capacity

514

Beneficial owner
EmBEA A

Beneficial owner
Em#EB A

EEERES

(c) RREE

Percentage of

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
(9 =1

Fong Kwok Jen
B0 [ 48

Chan Tong Wan
Bk 47 38

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
T E%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Held by frust (notfe 1)

EREFRE (Hat1)

Held by controlled
corporations (note 2)

Frizdlz A al4s A (HfF2)

Beneficial owner
EREAA

Held by spouse (note 3)
HREBEE (MfiE3)

Beneficial owner
Em#EE A

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

Beneficial owner
Em#EE A

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Held by spouse (nofe 4)
mERBFE (Hitd)

Notes:

1.

These shares/warrants are owned by a discretionary trust,
HSBC Trust (Cook Island) Limited. Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow (“Mrs.
Chan”) is one of the discretionary objects. Mrs. Chan is the
spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

These shares/warrants are owned by First Pacific
International Limited and Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in which
Mrs. Chan has 100% equity interests.

These shares/warrants are owned by Mr. Wooldridge Mark
Dean, the spouse of Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann.

These shares/warrants are owned by Ms. Josephina B.
Ozorio, the spouse of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.

Number of Issued share
Number of underlying Capital of the
warrants held shares Company, %
s HARDE D BT
RBEFHE HEROHE BRAEG
191,714,622 191,714,622 10.93%
3,222,727 3,222,727 0.18%
5,973,360 5,973.360 0.34%
56,336,460 56,336,460 3.21%
65,532,547 65,532,547 3.73%
2,564 2,564 0.00%
341,600 341,600 0.02%
344,164 344,164 0.02%
382,800 382,800 0.02%
525,214 525,214 0.03%
28,000 28,000 0.00%
480 480 0.00%
46,000 46,000 0.01%
46,480 46,480 0.01%
258,573,827 258,573,827 14.74%
M et

1.

ZERG R EFE B — I8 2 5 5EHSBC
Trust (Cook Island) Limited# A& © MR E
Bt ([Rad]) HZEEEREAZ —
BRZ T RREERE M -

ZERDG / RREBHRLLHEA PR
1 z= 2 First Pacific International Limited &
Prime Star Group Co. Ltd. & -

ZERG, RREFARNE Z L 2EB
Wooldridge Mark Deanst £ # A -

ZERD R EZEBDA Roza Joao
Paulost &£ 7 Fi B Josephina B. Ozorio# 4
A -



(2) Options
Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiary’s share option
schemes are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The following fable discloses details of the Company’s

Report of the Directors

share opfions in issue during the year:

Name of director

E3nt

Category 1: Directors

Chan Heng Fai

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Sook Jin,

Mary-ann

Fong Kwok Jen

Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Da Roza Joao
Paulo

Chian Yat Ping

Total for directors
Category 2: Employees

Total for employees

Total for employees

Total for all categories

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 22 May 2006 and 15 November 2006, the dates on
which the share options were granted, were HK$0.155 and

F-B E%

RER

RE®

RAE

RRE

BE

I5%

Da Roza Joao
Paulo

ERAH

RV

HK$0.146 respectively.

At 31 March 2007, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and
outfstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
419,200,000, representing 23.89% of the share of the

Date granted

RAAH

11.1.2004
11.16.2004
5.22.2006

11.1.2004
11.16.2004

11.16.2004
5.22.2006

11.16.2004

11.16.2004
11.15.2004

5.27.2005

12.21.2006

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

Company in issue at that date.

Exercisable period

AT EAR

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5222006 - 58.2013

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5222006 - 58.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.28.2005 - 58.2013

1.30.2007 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5222006 - 58.2013

Exercised

price

per share

=2
e
HKS
AT

0.16
0.1616
0.1566

0.16
0.1616

0.1616
0.1566

0.1616

0.1616
0.1616

0.15

0.1566

0.1616
0.1566

remained

ESEREE

&)
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AR R KB AR AR B H N
TR M RE35 -
TREBEARFARFAD BT ZBBRER

I‘E.
=

Outstanding Granted Exercise Cancelled Outstanding
at during during during at
4.1.2006 the year the year the year 3.31.2007
RZBERE RZBELE
A-H =R=1-H
WATE ERRE ERfTE EREH HATE

HKS

BT
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
147,000,000 = = = 147,000,000
- 120,000,000 - - 120,000,000
15,000,000 = = = 15,000,000
35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000
15,000,000 = = = 15,000,000
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000
8,000,000 = = = 8,000,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
245,000,000 127,000,000 - - 372,000,000
37,200,000 = (6,000,000) = 31,200,000
- 18,000,000 - (2,000,000) 16,000,000
37,200,000 18,000,000 (6,000,000 (2,000,000) 47,200,000
282,200,000 145,000,000 (6,000,000) (2,000,000) 419,200,000

ARAROREE _ZTEZSFRAA-+T-HBE=
ZEXRF+—A+HAB (BREZELESH) A
W H B Bl A&0.1557% jt % 0.1467 It °

R-ZTLF=A=+—H REBEKEFIC

BRHEAD A 18 R AT 6 2 8 e

NZBMEB R

419,200,000 * B AR RN % B 2 B &7
23.89% °
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In addition, the following outstanding options to subscribe
for shares in the capital of a subsidiary of the Company,
granted to certain directors of the Company under the
share option schemes of this subsidiary were as follows:

eBanker USA.Com, Inc. (“eBanker”)

The following table presents details of share optfions in
issue during the year.

Category 1: Directors E—H EZE
Chan Heng Fai [ERER

Fong Kwok Jen B B 48

Total held by directors EEMIFHAH
Category 2: Others F_f: Hit AL
Total held by others b AL RE
Total FoEy

There was no movement in the share options granted by
eBanker during the year.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
fo any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EEERES

BN - AT AR AR A — MM B A R R AR AR
102 mMARITE B AR i Ty IR R 5% Bt B A R 2 B AR 4
FEIRTARGETES FRHAOT :
eBanker USA.Com, Inc. ([eBanker])

TRODFANECETERBEZFSE -

Number of
Exercise share options
price per share at 3.31.2007
RIEZLHF
=BA=+—H=Z
BRITEE BREHE
uss
E
3.00 500,000
3.00 100,000
600,000
3.00 20,000
620,000

eBankerX iz BB IR F AL EAEMEF o

B EXXREEE SN - AR R S E AR B QRN E
REFERERESEERLYE  BREAARAES
AR E AR R SERNEMEABEZ KORE
HimEs o
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DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

®

@D

(iii)

On 25 February 2005, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan, for a term of three
years expiring on 31 January 2008. The service contract
provides for the payment of a salary of HK$2,100,000 per
month. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month.

In the event that the Company should tferminate Mr.
Chan’s employment following the change of conftrol of
the Company, as defined in the service contract, or for
any reasons not specifically excluded in the service
confract, Mr. Chan shall be entitled fo receive as
liquidated damages a lump sum equal to the sum which
would have been payable by the Company as gross
salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to exceed 12
months of salary, in respect of the unexpired tferm of the
Service Contract on the date notice of tfermination is
given.

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan for a term of two
years commencing from 1 February 2008. The service
contract provides for the payment of a salary of HK$185
per month. In addition, Mr. Chan is also enfitled to receive
an accommodation allowance of HK$160,000 per month.

On 22 April 2002, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mrs. Chan for a term of 5
years expiring on 1 February 2007. This service confract
provides for the payment of a salary of the greater of (a)
an annual salary equal to 1% of the net asset value of the
Company as shown in its consolidated audited accounts
at each financial year end, or (b) 110% of the basic salary
as mentioned in the service contract with Mrs. Chan. In
addition, Mrs. Chan is also entitled fo receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month. After
1 February 2007, the Service Contract is continued on a
month fo month basis

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan Tong Wan (“Tony
Chan”) for a term of three years and faken effect on
1 April 2007. The service contract provides for the
payment of annual salary of HK$2 million, HK$2.1 million
and HK$2.2 million for the first, second and third years of
services and Tony Chan shall be entitled to an incentive
bonus equivalent to 2.5% of the audited consolidated
profit of the Group before tax at the end of every financial
year or at such other rates or on such other terms as may
be determined and approved by the Board. In the event
that either party terminate the service contract, the
terminated party shall be entitled to receive, and the
tferminating party shall pay and transfer to the terminated

Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZTZT+HFFR
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party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum equal to the
sum which would have been payable by the Company
to Tony Chan as gross salary (excluding bonus, if
applicable), not to exceed 12 months of salary, in respect
of the unexpired term of the service contract on the date
notice of fermination is given.

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan Tung Moe (*Moe
Chan”) for a term of three years expiring on 2 July 2010.
The service contract provides for the payment of annual
salary of HKS1 million, HKS1.1 million and HK$1.2 million for
the first, second and third years of services and Moe Chan
shall be entitled o an incentive bonus equivalent to 2.5%
of the audited consolidated profit of the Group before
tax at the end of every financial year or at such other
rates or on such other terms as may be determined and
approved by the Board. In addition, Moe Chan is also
entitfled fo receive an accommodation allowance of
HK$20,000 per month. In the event that either party
tferminate the service contract, the terminated party shall
be entitled to receive, and the terminating party shall
pay and transfer to the terminated party, as liquidated
damages, a lump sum equal to the sum which would
have been payable by the Company to Moe Chan as
gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to
exceed 12 months of salary, in respect of the unexpired
term of the service conftract on the date notice of
termination is given.

Ofher than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a
service contfract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No confract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

24

EEERES

@)

(TEERLA - WER) 2RBERTRE
B #ASEBEL T+ —EAHFSE -

R-ZZLFLA=H  ARFRIERERE
£ (MRBR] ATLRBEL  RE=F K
—E-TFELA—HEM - ZRBEE KT H
RE—F F_FRE=-FREARZESF
% < % 1,000,000 7T - 1,100,0007% 7T &
1,200,000/ 7T » BRR &L Al A & 8 8 B 2
FREDVENAKEGRAKEERLEA G
M2.5% REEAL - AR EZG A RLEE M
o2 B b BRER S H A AR o UhSh - BRATE
IR A & ER & A 20,00078 7T 2 55 B2 AL o fin H
RRIERBAH  WERIE—TFAEE
B MBERLLE-TAXNRER PR
—HHEERARR RN E L& BB HZ
AR7 & 4 2 R & B PR JR & 2 T BR AT A%
RESEBRE (TBERLL  WER) ZAE(E
REBRFE EISEBEHT—_EAFS -

BEXEEEIN  BEEAESRAARBTILE
A ARR AR —FRNBRELFE OB ER
SN MR IEZ IRIE A4 °

EERAHNZRER

AR T S AE AN B A 7B T LA AR 7 E
FEEAMBAAEAES ARNFRAENEW
BRIMAERZ HMEBAH -



Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2007, according to the register of interest in
shares and underlying shares and short positions kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is
known to or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries by
the directors, the persons (other than the Directors of the
Company or their respective associate) who were interested
in 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company are
as follows:

Name Nature of interest
£ EEME
Prime Star Group Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner
EREAA
Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Beneficial owner
Limited (note 1) (K1) EmBEaA A

Corporate interest
NGIE: 3
Corporate interest
NGIE: 3
Corporate interest
NEIE:
Corporate interest
NGIE: 3
Corporate interest
NGIE: £
Corporate interest
YNGR
Corporate interest
NGIE: 3

Festival Developments Limited

SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited
World Developments Limited
Innovation Assets Limited

Kingsway Intfernational Holdings Limited
Jonathan Choi Koon Shum

First Pacific Intfernatfional Limited

Note:

(1) Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited is a company 100%
controlled by Festival Developments Limited which in turn is 100%
conftrolled by SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. SW Kingsway
Capital Holdings Limited in turn is 74% controlled by World
Developments Limited which in turn is 100% controlled by
Innovation Assets Limited which in turn is 100% confrolled by
Kingsway International Holdings Limited. Kingsway Intfernational
Holdings Limited is 46% controlled by Jonathan Choi Koon Shum.
Thus, the aforesaid interests in the Company duplicate each
other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, no person other
than the directors of the Company whose inferests are set out
in the section headed "Directors’ and chief executives’
inferests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital
of the Company, and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares that was required to be recorded in the
register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of shares/
underlying shares held %

PR 4D AEBE IR 10 B B B
518,195,207 29.53
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
206,800,000 11.78
114,546,800 6.530
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(1) Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited% —
fh Festival Developments Limited & # #l 2 A
7] - ifi Festival Developments Limitedfl] f§ SW
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limitedse & #2 | »
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limitedfl g
World Developments LimitediZ &l 74% -
World Developments Limited8l] g Innovation
Assets Limitedst 2 # §l - i Innovation Assets
Limitedfl f Kingsway International Holdings
Limited7 & % il - Kingsway International
Holdings Limited Jonathan Choi Koon Shum
EH46% c Bt - AR AR R Z BT EREE
g o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total furnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in
note 43 to the financial statfements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2007 with the Code of
Best Practice as sef out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Listing Rules”), with exception of a few deviations.
Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in pages 27 to 30 of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available tfo the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
fo re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

26 July 2007
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and strives to continually improve on
its governance processes as arficulated in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed of
nine members, comprising five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors are, collectively and individually, aware
of their responsibilities to the shareholders. The Directors’ profile
are set out on pages 12 and 13 of this Annual Report. The
relationship among members of the Board are also disclosed.

The Board members as at 31 March 2007 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors ("INEDs")

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza
Ms. Chian Yat Ping

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success
and enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group’s
overall strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board
monitors and oversees the operating and financial
performance of the Group pursuant to these objectives.

To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and
delegated specific responsibilities to two Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee and fthe Remuneration
Committee. The respective roles and responsibilities of each
Board committee, their work and activities are included in this
Report.

The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group’s business to the management
team.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and their positions held by different individuals to
ensure their respective independence, accountability and
responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership to and overseeing the function of the Board while
the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the
Board’s strategy and managing the Group’s business and
operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive Directors on the Board,
three of whom are independent. They have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and
thus submit themselves, on a rotation basis, for re-election by
shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February 1995 and
comprises the three INEDs:

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza
Ms. Chian Yat Ping

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was formulated
in accordance with the requirements of the new Code on
Corporate Governance Practices. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include the review of financial information,
overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures as well as maintaining a working relationship with
the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Audit Committee
met 2 times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment,
scope, plan and fee of the external auditors; the external
auditors’ audit findings covering infernal control and risk
management issues; the inferim and annual financial results
and statements and other financial reporting matters.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of infernal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries, which has covered major and material
conftrols in areas of financial, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
September 2005 and currently comprises of the one executive
Director and two INEDs:

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

28

TRERHSE

ERRITHRAR
IRRABRAEZACETESD  RMEBLT
BR— AT BAERERSEE 2B -
MEEREAM TRARFAYESY  UBEE
FEIBE MOBRBRNAERATESE LR
BRERARE Y XHREE -

FHUTES

EEERENAHNTES  HR=RABUH
POEE  FRTEERETENMESEL ¥
BRERDR 2 AHERAENRERT BT
MESEHRESEET -

FHREE
Joao Paulo Da Rozakt 4
B—Ft

ERZBGZBAHNECRENICEELAER
SAIZRERE  BEREZEGZIZRECRRESE
BB EN SEBEMBRREERABETRE
Fr o AR EROMNIE R BRBD (R 45 TAER P Z BER -

REZE-ZZ+F=ZA=1+—HIFERN FZ
ZESHAFSWR - U - ZEREA ¢ I
MBI 2R BEEEE  FEIRER  INER
B o RBER (REANEERRARERS
) P HI R B A B A A T R R AN L At B A B R
£H

AR &5 2

EECYARAREMBARZAREERRZ
ARUEETEERS  BEREARANE - &
¥ ARRARERE S A2 EREAEE

FWEES
FHEBLEN-TTEFAA=+ARL - B
B ST EER - RBUIRTEFMAMN

Joao Paulo Da Rozak 4
EZ R E
PR EBa+



Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZZ L FFH

N\ 2N
Corporate Governance Report TEERRS
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was FTNE B BEHECRENITICEERER
formulated in accordance with the requirements of the new SFRIZ R ESIE © %’T@Ni BEARNTEERS
Code on Corporate Governance Practices. The Remuneration TMERE Z HBR

Committee is responsible for developing the remuneration
policies of Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, one Remuneration REBEE_ZTLFZA=Z1+—HLEFE ' BT
Committee meeting was held. —AEMHNEERERE -

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD AND REZERZESEE2HELE
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit Committee FRN BFEFREFSLE  ERZESRETM
and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year are ZEERRIEREBEARKIAT -

set out below:

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HESRRE BTERRY

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Directors E EFEE EREESE FMzEEE
Mr. Chan Heng Fai Bk 18 98 5 £ 6/6 N/A 135 A N/A 1 iE A
Mr. Chan Tong Wan PR 47 38 o5 £ 6/6 N/A i A N/A 38 A
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow BREBZ L 6/6 N/A 7~ A 1/1
Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann PR B8 22 4 5/6 N/A 7T~ i@ A N/A T~ iE A
Non-Executive Director HHITEFE
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen B8 B 48 5E A 6/6 N/A 7~ i A N/A 7~ A
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTEF
Directors
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter FErkE 6/6 2/2 1/1
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Rozat 4 6/6 2/2 1/1
Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel ! TRBEAE 3/3 1/1 0/0
Ms. Chian Yat Ping 2 #— 12 3/3 /1 N/A 138 A
Number of meeting held FRABTZERRHY
during the year 6 2 1
Notes: HtaE -
1. Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel retired as Director and member of the 1. FRBEER_ZTAEFREBFRAGEREBEML
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee upon conclusion EEREZZESLTHNEZESKERK -
of the 2006 AGM.
2. Ms. Chian Yat Ping was appointed as Director and members of 2. B—FLZIR-_TTRFNA-THBEZERE
the Audit Committee on 25 September 2006. ERBZLZEGKE °
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DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities fransactions
by directors (the "Code of Conduct”) on tferms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the *Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31 March 2007.

DIRECTORS’
ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the accounts of the Group and that the
accounts are issued in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the external auditors
provided the following services to the Group:

% 2R 75

Audit services
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Xpress Group Limited
(formerly known as China Credit Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xpress Group Limited (formerly known as China Credit Holdings
Limited) (the "Company”) set out on pages 33 to 130, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the frue and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal conftrol relevant to the preparation
and the frue and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
fo you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Audifing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audif
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal confrol. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group’s profif
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

26 July 2007

32

BB RS

ERSRATRANEREBYERERAESHE
MEEERNBRER - FIEENEABURRZ
SRy FI BT - BIERT A AR ERRF S B AR T B B
BHRRFEERERRANAR - EFEZFA
BF RBMEEEZARRIRAEEMN AR M
FIREA SRR AR A AR - ARFHEENR
A2 - B IEE X R R A EREE B B I B R
BR - BERTERFEEEMRANSFERD
BEMREHNEENAENE  URFEN
BHEONBEIHSA -

HMEE - BHMMESHEREERRAEE
REMNERS RREEER -

=R

HMRR  ZEUBBRRERBETETHREE
AEEMAAMKRR BEXANM BEEER_F
TLF=A=T "B BEARE BEEEEHE
ZELEFEEMGEMARSRE  YERR(EBER
AR EBEREZRES -

98 & 1T
B @ 56D

&%

25 K 155
EibES
SRLITAEISE

2T FLHA=+KHE



Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gain on
investment properties
Bad debt recovered
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets

Profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Atftributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity holders
of the Company during the year
- Basic

From confinuing and
discontinued operations
From confinuing operations

- Diluted
From continuing and
discontinued operations
From continuing operations
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Notes
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—BRLEER

2007 2006
—ETLE —TEAA
HK$°000 HK$"000
FET FET
689,184 445,005
(631,820) (405,290)
57,364 39,715
21,205 2,234
55,476 100,745
78,351 4,956
943 20,206
(142,692) (111,613)
(11,390) (10,531)
- (186)

59,257 45,526
(17,453) (13,734)
(1,249) (13,159)
40,555 18,633
(24,474) (229)
16,081 18,404

- 84,140

16,081 102,544
40,112 53,138
(24,031) 49,406
16,081 102,544

HK2.35 cents& {lli
HK2.35 centsi il

HK3.27 centsi 1l
HK1.46 centsi# {ll

HK2.24 centsi il
HK2.24 centsi& i

HK3.15 centsi# il
HK1.40 centsi# il
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 March 2007

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land leases
Investment properties

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates

Long term deposits
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Loans receivable

Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loans receivable

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from associates

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
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275,705 55,769 900 1,200
- - 14,218 14,218
16,010 17,469 = 4
7,664 6,677 - -
45,815 14,239 - -
18,955 7,037 - -
450 137 - -
4,385 4,219 - -
411,602 146,435 16,166 16,742
486 563 - -
131,525 81,104 803 596
178,812 39,503 140,220 2,297
3,008 2,441 = _
- - 256,805 205,185
6,577 3,223 1,521 3,223
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 March 2007

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Finance lease payables
Taxes payable

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Finance lease payables
Convertible debentures
Amounts due to associates
Deferred taxation

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to
Company’s equity holders

Share capital

Reserves

Minority interests

Total equity

Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman
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¢ SEBLEEH

Group Company
K& KA FE

2007 2006 2007 2006
TEELE | ZETRF| ZBELE | ZTTRF
HK$°000 HKS’000 HK$°000 HKS’000
FET FET FEx FAET
100,288 34,573 7,587 2,255

43,333 28,389 -
605 610 - -
3,526 11,073 - -
- - 56,075 46,001
147,752 74,645 63,662 48,256
364,229 429,776 391,451 367,679
775,831 576,211 407,617 384,421
134,623 34,672 - -
972 303 - -
50,234 48,577 - -
236 - - -
22,159 2,810 196 196
208,224 86,362 196 196
567,607 489,849 407,421 384,225
17,548 16,265 17,548 16,265
511,035 412,852 389,873 367,960
528,583 429,117 407,421 384,225
39,024 60,732 - -
567,607 489,849 407,421 384,225

Chan Tong Wan
Managing Director

EFMEE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement et
= el

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land leases
Amortisation of infangible assets
Impairment losses on
- available-for-sale financial assets
- frade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposals of other
infangible assets
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
Gain on deemed disposals of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of an investment
property with deposit paid
Fair value gain on
investment properties
Equity settled share based
payment expenses
Inferest income
Interest expenses on borrowings
and convertible debentures
Finance lease interest expenses
Share of results of associates
Write off of goodwill
Excess of the Group’s interests in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and confingent
liabilities over cost

Operating (loss)/profit before

working capital changes
Increase in loans receivable
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Increase in amounts due
from an associate
Decrease/(Increase) in tfrade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
(Decrease)/Increase in trade
and other payables
increase/(Decrease) in amounts
due to an associate
Decrease in provision

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from

36
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2007 2006
—EBLE —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET F&T
40,555 18,633

= 94,519

3,590 3,368
530 530

= 101

- 186

26 8,354

416 4

= 16
- (94,332)
- (553)

(3,884) -
(78,351) (4,956)
1,049 1,587
(15,719) (10,223)
17,411 13,658
42 76
1,249 13,159
652 -
(360) -
(32,794) 44,127
(880) (1,964)
77 (169)
(3,354) (3,223)
448 (13,558)
(135,528) 200,062
(2,672) 15,374
236 (3,240)
- (6,739)
(174,467) 230,670
(18,972) (6)
(193,439) 230,644




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease in pledged
bank deposits
Increase in available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds from disposals of property,

plant and equipment
Purchases of property,

plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of an investment

property with deposit paid only
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Proceeds of disposal of a subsidiary
Interest received
Payment of long term deposits

Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown/(Repayment) of borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of share capital

Issuance of warrants

Capital injection from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid

Increase in/(repayment of)
finance lease payables

Finance lease interest expenses

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 March

Analysis of the balance of cash
and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft

Annual Report 2007
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2007 2006
—gELE —FTRE
HK$’000 HKS 000
FETT FHET
4,605 58,786
- (3,353)

67 1,784
(3,647) (4,357)
(93,366) -
10,561 -
(15,393) (84)
- 88,379

15,719 10,223
(7,664) (6,677)
(89,118) 144,701
100,763 (62,953)
20,170 43
5,160 -
1,316 1,861
(15,754) (12,648)
664 (588)
(42) (76)
112,277 (74,361)
(170,280) 300,984
363,083 61,300
(4,620 799
188,183 363,083
191,573 372,816
(3,390) (9,733)
188,183 363,083
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SERRRF

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2007

GERBE2BDR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

Minority Total
Equity atfributable fo equity holders of the Company interests equity
ARAREREAREER SERREE  EREE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-based
Share Share Warrant  revaluation  revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
NR
ARER 13 2fi7EE
Bx  RBEE RE  EfERE REEMRR EXRE ZRERE  ZHEE @it
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT TAT FAL TATL T AT T FAL AT T AT
At 1 April 2005 R-ZFZ0%F
NA-A 16,261 704,622 - - - 16,985 546 (371,345) 366,969 10,000 376,969
Revaluation surplus upon KERRELHR
tronsfer of owner-occupied ~ EFERZRE
leasehold land and buildings M5 2 Ef &%
fo investment properties - - - 9,743 - - - - 9,743 - 9,743
Deferred fax licbiliies arising ~ EENEEEZ
on revaluation of properties  EREHEBAE - - - (1,705) - - - - (1,705) - (1,705)
Fair value losses on IREESHEE
available-for-sale JATEER
financial ossefs - - - - (1,806) - - - (1,806) - (1,806)
Exchange difference on RAEBNEH
translation of overseas EEZERZE
operations - - - - - 1,148 - - 1,148 - 1,148
Net income/(expense) ERNERERL
recognised directly in equity B A/ (1) - - - 8,038 (1,806) 1,148 - - 7,380 - 7,380
Profit for the year FEER = = = = - - - 53,138 53,138 49,406 102,544
Total recognised income EEEERL
and expense for the year BRART - - - 8,038 (1,806) 1,148 - 53,138 60,518 49,406 109,924
Issue of new shares upon RTEF2R
exercise of bonus worants  ERMETHR 4 3 - - - - - - Ik} - 8
Avrising from acauisition RRENELR
of subsidliories ]33 - - - - - - - - - 18 18
Capital contribution from —AHBRARZ
minority shareholder PURF L E
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1,308 1,308
Employee share-based ERURA A
compensation expenses TEEZ
recognised BERX - - - - - - 1,587 - 1,587 - 1,587
At 31 March 2006 RZZE/E
=A=1-A 16,265 704,561 - 8,038 (1,806) 18,133 2133 (318,207) 429117 60,732 489,849
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2006

Fair value gain on
available-for-sale financial
assets

Exchange differences on
franslation of overseas
operations

Share of reserve of
an ossocaite

Net income/(expenses)
recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recongised income and
expenses for the year

Exercise of 2009 and 2006
warrants subscription rights
(notes 34(b) & (c))

Exercise of share options
(note 35)

Issue of warrants

Transfer fo reserves upon
exercise of share option

Transfer fo reserves upon
cancelation of share option

Share of reserve of an
associate

Arising from acaquisition of a
subsidiary

Capital contribution from
minority shareholder of a
subsidiary

Employee share-bosed
compensation expenses
recognised

At 31 March 2007

FEBERL
BRARSH

i
(H#34b)R ()
ffERRE

(K 35)
FIRRIER
AfnEEREES
B
AEEREES
X1
AEBERRRE

BRERBAR
)3

~HHEARZ
HURFHE

UEHX A TER
LHRRX

n

Annual Report 2007 e

EREZE2H X

BE-STLFAST-ALFE

—ETLEEH

Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
ANAREREARLES LERREE  ERER

Employee

Assets  Investment share-based

Share Share Warrant  revaluation  revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R
DRER BE xfiTEE
kx  BRBEE B EfiGG REEMEE  EXRE <RERE  ZHER &3t

HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FiET T T T T T T AT AT T FiAT
16,265 704,561 - 8,038 (1.806) 18,133 2133 (318,207) 49,117 60,782 489,849
- - - - 26918 - - - 26918 - 25918
- - - - - 7,261 - - 7,267 - 7,261
- - - - - (192 - - (192) - (192)
- - - - 26918 7,075 - - 32,993 - 32,993
- - - - - - - 40,112 40,112 (24,031) 16,081
- - - - 26918 7,075 - 40,112 73,106 (24,081) 49,074
1,223 17977 - - - - - - 19,200 - 19,200
60 910 - - - - - - 970 - 970
- - 5,160 - - - - - 5160 - 5,160
- 21 - - - - 2n - - - -
- - - - - - (22) 2 - - -
- - - - - - (18) - (18) - (18)
- - - - - - - - - 1,007 1,007
- - - - - - - - - 1,316 1,316
- - - - - - 1,049 - 1,049 - 1,049
17,548 723,469 5,160 8,038 24112 25,208 3121 (278,073) 528,583 39,024 567,607

39



Xpress Group Limited o 453

dH
TS
Vi
J |
ant
<
S
ol

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

40

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xpress Group Limited (formerly known as “China Credif
Holdings Limited”) (the "Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The
name of the Company was changed from “China Credit
Holdings Limited” to “Xpress Group Limited” with effect
from 28 May 2007. The address of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business is 5th
Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road, North Poinft,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(tfogether referred to as the "Group”) include investment
holding, property investment, travel related services, hotel
operations, securities investments, treasury investment and
credit card business.

The acquisitions of subsidiaries, Makino Air Travel Service
Co. Ltd., Nikko Travel Service Co. Ltd. and Sapporo
Holdings Co. Ltd. described in note 41 are in line with the
Group’s strategy to expand its travel, leisure and
hospitality business.

The financial statfements on pages 33 to 130 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) which collective tferm
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange ("Listing
Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2007 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 26 July 2007.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

From 1 April 2006, the Group has adopted all the new
and amended HKFRSs which are first effective on 1 April
2006 and relevant fo the Group. The adoption of these
HKFRSs has resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting
policy on financial guarantee confracts. Other than this,
the adoption of these new and amended HKFRSs did not
result in significant changes in the Company’s and the
Group’s accounting policies but gave rise fo additional
disclosures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(continued)

2.1

Amendments fo HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement - Financial
Guarantee Contracts

The amendments to HKAS 39 require an entity to
account for certain financial guarantee contracts in
accordance with that standard. To comply with the
requirements of the amended HKAS 39, the Group
has adopted a new accounting policy to recognise
financial guarantee contracts. On initial recognition,
these confracts are measured at fair value and they
are subsequently stated at the higher of:

- the amount initially recognised less where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the Group’s
revenue recognition policies; and

- the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contfingent Liabilities and
Contfingent Assets”.

Details of this new accounting policy are set out in
note 3.22.

Prior to this new accounting policy, the Group
disclosed the financial guarantees issued as
contfingent liabilities in accordance with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Conftracts” and HKAS 37. Provisions for the
Group’s liabilities under the financial guarantee
contracts were made when it was more likely than
not that the guaranteed party would default and
the Group would incur outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits.

This new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively to the extent that the financial
guarantee contracts were in existence at 1 April 2005
(i.e. the date when HKAS 39 was initially adopted by
the Group). The adoption of this new accounfing
policy has no material impact on the financial
statements reported in the current and prior
accounting periods, thus, no adjustment to prior
periods has been made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

42

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The directors of the Company is currently
assessing the impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet
in a position to state whether they would have
material financial impact on the Group’s financial

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

2. RMHFTREET 2 BRI HR

HER (&)

2.2 BEMERERERZHET BT
BRYHREEL
A5 3 IR IR A T E M2 Mok
SR EBHBRELR  ARTEE
REFERSEERGRELL 2 Y
£ EMRERTRSENGTHAE
EHGREEREANBLE -

statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” - Capital Disclosures !
CHEN - Ak [k z 25 — B REE

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” 2

&g et 2RI 235 (K EET) [fEERA 2

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” !
BEMBREERIE 75 [T A : #E&]

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” 2

H 7 B i 22 B F 85 [#e & Ek]2

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 8 “Scope of HKFRS 2” 3

BB (MBRERELZE]) RESLHR (BB EERE25% 2 & E ]2

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 9 “"Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives” 4
58 MBEREREZES) REFESR [EfmAXITET A

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 10 “Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment” ®
EE (MBRERBEZEG) REFI05% [ HA BT 75 3R 5 RORl B ®

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 11 “Group and Treasury Share Transactions” ¢
EE(MBHREREZES) REF1IR [EEREFRHRZ S

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” ’

ER (MBHREREZEE) 2B 125 (ARG ERZ Y]

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
May 2006

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2006

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
November 2006

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
March 2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2008

} R F-F-ARZRARZ
FEHREN -

2 RZZBZEAF A —BARZRARZ
FREBARER -

3 R-ZBERFRAA-—BHZ2EMBZ
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° R-ZZBERF+ A —BRZERAR
ZEFEHEENR -

6 R-FEELF=ZA—BHZ2EHBEZ
FEBPRAER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

3.2

3.3

Baisis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment
properties and certain financial assets and liabilities,
which are stated at their fair value. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Baisis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
the power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
confrols another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which confrol is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

44

POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combinations (other than for combining
entities under common control) are accounted for
by applying the purchase method. This involves the
revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior fo acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on fransactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable
at the balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit
or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Group
and are not the Group’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interests are presented separately in the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of
the Group’s results. Where losses applicable fo the
minority exceeds the minority interests in the
subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses
applicable to the minority are allocated against the
minority interest to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment fo cover the losses. Otherwise, the losses
are charged against the Group’s inferests. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits are
allocated to the minority interest only after the
minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates

3. FESHHERBE (&)

3.4 BE QT

Associates are those entities over which the Group is
able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investment in a joint venture. In consolidated
financial statements, investment in associates is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the Group’s inferest in the associate
is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds ifs interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this
purpose, the Group’s inferest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the idenfifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group,
plus any costs directly atfributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. After the application of equity
method, the Group defermines whether it is
necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss
on the Group’s investment in ifs associates. At each
balance sheet date, the Group determines whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (see note 3.11) of the associate
and its carrying amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

46

3.4

3.5

Associates (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contfingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the
income statement in the determination of the
Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in which
the investment is acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are
made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in an
associate is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Foreign currencies translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars ("HKS$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In tfhe individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency fransactions
are franslated intfo the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are franslated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
balance sheet date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Foreign currencies translation (contfinued)

3. FESHHERBE (&)

3.5 ‘M E (&)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted intfo HKS. Assets and liabilities have been
franslated intfo HK$ at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the franslation reserve in
equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
2005 have been treated as assefs and liabilities of
the foreign operation and franslated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing rates. Goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of foreign operation before 1 April 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

Other exchange differences arising from the
tfranslation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods, rendering of services, the use by other of the
Group’s assets yielding interest, royalfies and
dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) Sales of goods are recognised upon fransfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
customer. This is usually tfaken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

(b) Sales of air tickets are recognised upon issuance
of the air tickefts.

(c) Sales of tours are recognised upon departure of
the tour group.

(d) Revenue from hotel accommodation is
recognised upon issuance of the hotel vouchers.

(e) Consultancy service income and credit card
service income are recognised when services
are provided.

(f) License fees are recognised over the license
period.

(g) Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

(h) Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.

() Interest income from credit card receivables is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement on an accrual basis, except where a
debt becomes doubftful, in which case
recognition of interest income is suspended until
it is realised on a cash basis.

() Ofther interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred during
the year.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on
goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary.
Accounting for goodwill arising on acquisition of
investment in an associate is set out in note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assefts, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
The cost of the business combination is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination or investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 3.11).

Any excess of the Group’s inferest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of gain
or loss on disposal.

Prepaid land leases and property, plant and
equipment

Prepaid land leases represents up-front payments to
acquire long term interest in the usage of land. They
are stated at cost and charged to income statement
over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-
line basis net of any impairment losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

50

POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Prepaid land leases and property, plant and

equipment (continued)

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
prepaid land leases, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the fair
value of the prepaid land leases at the inception of
the lease, and other items of plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives or the term of the
relevant lease, if shorter.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost over
their estimated useful lives, on the following bases
and at the following rates per annum:

Buildings
Over the shorter of the lease term or 2% on straight-
line method

Leasehold improvements
Over the term of the lease or 6.67%-20% on straight-
line method, whichever is the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and motor vehicles
20%-25% on reducing balance method

The assets’ estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposals is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fufure
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10Investment properties

3. FESHHERBE (&)

3.10REW

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are on freehold land/owned or held under a
leasehold inferest fo earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property intferest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the inferest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value. The
carrying amounts recognised in the balance sheet
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property is
included in the income statement for the period in
which they arise.

Property which is held by the Group for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes is classified as owner-
occupied property. The Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated in
note 3.9 for buildings and prepaid land lease
elements of the owner-occupied property
respectively. When the owner-occupied property
subsequently becomes an investment property that
will be carried at fair value, any decrease in the
carrying amount of the property is recognised in the
income statement. However, to the extent that an
amount is previously included in revaluation surplus
for the owner-occupied property, the decrease is
charged against that revaluation surplus. Any
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in
income statement to the extent that such increase
reverses a previous impairment loss and any
remaining part of increase is credited directly to
assets revaluation reserve.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

52

POLICIES (continued)

3.10Investment properties (continued)

On subsequent disposal of the investment property
which was previously an owner-occupied property,
the revaluation surplus included in assets revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

For properties held for sale which subsequently
become investment properties that will be carried at
fair value, any difference between the fair value of
the property at the date of change in use and its
previous carrying amount will be recognised in
income statement.

3.11 Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary,
property, plant and equipment, and inferests in
subsidiaries and associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is fested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indicatfion that
they are impaired. All other assets are ftested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,
unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued
amount under the Group’s accounting policy. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific fo the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unif). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group at
which fthe goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESTHRMUE (B

POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Impairment of assets (continued)

SNEERE (&)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, fo which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the cash-generating unit,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assefs, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been defermined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

3.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a fransaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in refurn for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and
is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which tfransfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not fransfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with fthe following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 3.10);
and
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@

@

(i)

POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (confinued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
(continued)

= land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 3.9). For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the
tfime that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asseft, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assefs are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as finance lease
payables.

Subsequent accounting for assetfs held under
finance lease agreements corresponds to those
applied to comparable acquired assets. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced
by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to income statement over the
period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged o the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease ferms
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income
statement as an infegral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12Leases (continued) 31254 (&)

(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease ferm on the same basis as the rental
income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.

3.13 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- financial assets af fair value through profit or
loss

- loans and receivables
- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assetfs at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party fo the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly aftributable transaction costs.
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POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred. At each balance sheet date, financial
assets are reviewed to assess whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial assef.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
which are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an intfegral part of the effective
interest rate and fransaction cost.

B R R MR

B=

—BELESASH—AILEE

3. FESHHERBE (&)

SIBEMEE (&)

i 78 #5 E M ER 3R 2 7 2 #E ) 3B H ok e
ENBABO B EZRER K EHRE K
EER o ARGRERSREE - RE[E
#ER BHeEMIBEE UM
ERBREEBREAEREELTR
B - WEEAZEEE  HEBEER
ERMBEENFEERER -

() HAFEFAAEZZEHEE

EATEAABEZOREES
EHFEEARZ S BAEMNS
BMEEDAEBLETBA © 67
£ TA (RIS HOBARITE
TR) B BARERE - BIER
SHET ARIEEABRY T
AR BRERAM -

NEEREK  SREENRFE
AR ATEZEIRNEERTD
R -

() BEZHRERZHE
BERREWFHIERBEEESKAE
ERAMIERNERMIZEE 2
FTESREE - ERREKK
I8 E 1% DAE BRI 3= 0% = 88 85 A AN
WA ERDBEE ISR o #5H K
ATt RKRE 2 E R RS R E
MetE - WEEERERFER
RGKAEKEBH 2 ER °



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assetfs. These are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from
a change in the fair value is recognised directly
in equity, except for impairment losses (see the
policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses, until the financial asset is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity would be
recognised in the income statement. Interest
calculated using the effective inferest method
is recognised in the income statement. Upon
disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is fransferred to the income
statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
the impairment loss is measured and recognised as
follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

58

®

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement in the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement as impairment loss. That
amount is measured as the difference between
the asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in the income statement. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

3.13Financial assets (continued) J3EWMEE (&)

(iii)  Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

3.14 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

3.15 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current fax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the fax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in the income
statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a fransaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (confinued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to conftrol the reversal of the tfemporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assetfs or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cast at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short ferm
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible intfo
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For cash flow
statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an intfegral part of the Group’s
cash management.

3.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on
the issue of share capital. Any fransaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity tfransaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Retirement benefit costs and short term JIBENREBEFA AR IEHEERA

employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through several defined conftribution plans.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its Hong
Kong employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assetfs of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in
Singapore and Japan are required to parficipate in
the defined confribution plans regulated and
managed by the local government. The contributions
to the defined contribution plans are charged to the
income statement in the period to which the
confributions relate.

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

3.19 Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and not vested on 1 April
2005 are recognised in the financial statements. The
Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

3.19Share-based employee compensation

(continued)

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised af the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in the income statement
with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve). If vesting
periods or other vesting conditions apply. the
expense is recognised over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if
there is any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised in
prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be fransferred
to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

3.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, borrowings, finance leases payables
and convertible debentures.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of
the instrument. All interest related charges are
recognised as an expense in finance costfs in the
income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

320&mAE (&)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is tfreated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in the income statement.

Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at initial value
less the capital element of lease repayments (see
note 3.12).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of tfransaction
costs) and the redempftion value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures issued by the subsidiary of
the Company that confain both financial liability and
equity components are classified separately info
respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between fthe
proceeds of the issue of the convertible debentures
and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the call option for
conversion of the debenture info equity, is included
in equity as convertible debenture equity reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component will remain in equity until
conversion or redemption of the debenture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

64

POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible debentures (continued)

When the debenture is converted, the convertible
debenture equity reserve and the carrying value of
the liability component at the time of conversion, is
fransferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the debenture
is redeemed, the convertible debenture equity
reserve is released directly fo retained earnings.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised inifially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

3.21 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to seftle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the conftrol of the
group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of
the allocation of purchase price to the assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination. They
are initially measured at fair value at the datfe of
acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Financial guarantee contracts

3. FESHHERBE (&)

S2R2UBEREN

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) fo make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within frade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected fo exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

3.23 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segments as the secondary
reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets
consist primarily of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
tfrade and otfher receivables and operating cash,
and mainly exclude corporafe assefs. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude
itfems such as corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting
from acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting,
revenue is based on the country in which the
customer is located and total assets and capital
expenditure are where the assets are located.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

66
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directly, or indirectly through one or more
infermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common conftrol with, the
Company/Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Company that gives it significant influence over
the Company/Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Company/Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an enftity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Company/
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Company/Group.

3.25 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of, or that is classified
as held for sale, and () represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations;
(b) is part of a single co-ordinated plan fo dispose of
a separafte major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or (c) is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

@

®)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in nofe 3.11. The
recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-
generating unifs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates.

Estimate fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In the
absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its

judgement, the Group considers information

from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences.

(iiy recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current
market renfs for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made fthe following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

68

@

®)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assetfs, a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value
below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant and/or prolonged. In
making this judgement, the historical data on
market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The
Group also takes into account ofther factors,
such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property
qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgement, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that
are attributable not only fo property but also to
other assets used in production or supply of
Qgoods or services.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another porfion that is held for use for
administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under
finance lease), the Group accounts for these
portions separately. If the portions cannot be
sold separately, the property is accounted for
as an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property
separately in making its judgement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

5. REVENUE AND TURNOVER

Revenue, which is also the Group’s furnover, represents
total invoiced value of goods supplied and income from
provision of services. Revenue recognised during the year

is as follows:

Continuing operations S EER
Sale of air tickets, tours and HERE  RTER

hotel accommodation EEEER/A

Credit card interest income EFERRAMERA
Dividend income & 2 WA
Rental income HE WA
Other interest income H A F B A
Credit card service income ERARRB KA

Revenue from continuing operations  #FE& 2 275 2 ek

Discontinued operations BRIEER
License fees for healthcare software  REH (T &
Consultancy service income B 1 AR 75 M A

Revenue from discontinued operations 2 #% I % 1§~ Wz

Total revenue 18 =

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Primary reporting format - business segments

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis info five
main business segments: travel related operations, credit
card operations, securities frading and investments,
freasury investment and property investment.
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5 W NKEX5E
WA - BN A

T

REBEE A

RRNRERE WA - FARERZWAL

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
664,344 424,622
5,254 6,367
1,241 6,897
5,505 1,911
10,465 3,856
2,375 1,352
689,184 445,005
- 59,781

- 24,541

- 84,322
689,184 529,327

6. DEEH

FEEHREA -XBDH
AEBZ2REB D BAEERER DAL
IREREES  ERRER [HEERRK
B HMEREERMERE -

Travel related operation - provide fravel related services in Hong Kong and outside Hong
Kong.

i 3% 48 B8 22 7% - REFEREE AN E A IR 2248 B E

Credit card operations - provide credit card services fto individuals and acquiring
services for members.

ERARER - RAEMALTRHEBREBRAGERHKRBEERS

Securities trading and investments - trading of securities

BEREENMKRE - BEEES

Treasury investment - asset management and cash operations

MERE - BEEBERBESER

Property investment - letting properties

MERE - HHEmE

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
prices.

DEEHEERB TN EFE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTLtHF=-RA=1T—HLEE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Primary reporting format - business segments FEEREX-EHKHIH (&)
(continued)
2007
“E5tLE
Continuing operations
Travel Securifies
related Credit card trading and Treasury Property
operations  operations investments invesiment investment Eliminations Group
g #5EE

REXE GAFER kRE HERE NERE H LS
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR - AR T TER TEn TER

Revenue L

- External sales -HINEE 664,344 1,629 1,241 10,465 5,505 - 689,184

- Inter-segment sales -PHAHE 162 152 - 28,348 1,413 (30,075) -

664,506 1,181 1,241 38,813 6918 (30,075) 689,184

Segment results PHEE (10,529) (12,829) 46,550 10,466 82,946 - 116,604
Unallocated revenue AFAENE 21,205
Unallocated expenses AFARARRY (78,552)
Finance cosfs BERAK (17,483)
Share of results of associates EEBERFEE (1,249) - - - - - (1,249)
Profit before income tax BREGEHRAES 40,555
Income tax expense FrEmI (24,474)
Profit for the year EEET 16,081
Segment assefs PHEE 43,078 16,128 224,621 4,453 306,509 - 594,795
Associates NG 16,010 - - - - - 16,010
Unallocated assets AFOREE 312,778
Total assets EELE 923,583
Segment liabilities AHERE 34,692 3,202 - 645 15,316 - 53,855
Unallocated liabilities FFARAE 302,121
Total liobilities RERE 355,976
Capital expenditure BAHY 4739 518 - 45 129,214 612 135,128
Depreciation ik 690 868 38 363 874 757 3,590
Amortisation of leasehold land BERT - - - - 530 - 530
Impaiment losses on frade 85 REMER

and other receivable BREER - 26 - - - - 26
Fair value gain on RENF A TENE

investment properties - - - - 78,351 - 78,351
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTtF=-PA=1T—HLEE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Primary reporting format - business segments FTEEREX XK (&
(continued)
2006
S NS
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FEREEH BRILEH
Travel Securlties
related  Credit card  frading and Treasury Property Health
operations  operations  investments  investments  Investment  Eliminations Total care Group
% RRTER Rh&E  HERE  WERE o @t fRf2 A5E

HK$‘000 HK$‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TEL TAT TAT TA7 AT T TAL TE7

Revenue ]

- External sales —-H5MEE 424,622 7.719 6,897 3,856 1911 - 445,005 84,322 529,327

- Infer-segment sales -HHHEE - 141 - 24,916 1,735 (26,792) - - -

424,622 7,860 6,897 28,772 3,646 (26,792) 445,005 84,322 529,327

Segment results PHEE (7,394) 27,299 98,333 3,852 1,378 - 123,468 (366) 123,102
Unallocated revenue ATARKE 2,234 - 2,234
Unallocated expenses FFARAR (80,176) - (80,176)
Finance costs BERK (13,734) - (13,734)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIEEHE-MA

a subsidiary HEBARZ Ma - 563 553
Gain on disposal of subsidiories  HEMNEA 72 Mz - 94,332 94,332
Share of resulfs of associates PMEBERREE (13,159) - (13,159)
Profit before income tox B R g 18,633 94,519 113,152
Income fax expense FER% (229) (10,379) (10,608)
Profit for the year ERET 18,404 84,140 102,544
Segment assefs PHEE 40,976 16,473 412,532 5,532 87,902 - 563,415 - 563,415
Associates BEAR 17,469 - - - - - 17,469 - 17,469
Unallocated assets ATHREE 69,972 - 69.972
Total assets BEMLE 650,856 - 650,856
Segment liabilities PHEE 50,193 3,764 232 645 47,064 - 101,898 - 101,898
Unallocated liabilties ATAREE 59,109 - 59,109
Total liabilities BEEE 161,007 - 161,007
Capital expenditure EREY 726 572 720 87 299 614 3,018 1,386 4,404
Depreciation ik 461 724 283 417 104 172 2,161 1,207 3,368
Amortisation of infangible assets &/ & E & 8 = - - - - - - 101 101
Amortisation of leasehold land RELHEH - - - - 530 - 530 - 530
Impaiment losses on frade and ~~ E 5 R A ek

other receivable HEHERR - 1,995 - 1,401 - 4,725 8,121 233 8,354
Impairment losses on ARHESR

availoble-for-sale BERERE

financial assefs - - 186 - - - 186 - 186
Fair value gain on investment RENEFATEYE

properties - - - - 4,956 - 4,956 - 4,956
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

DERER (&)

A
Secondary reporting format - geographical REZHRHN - HED I
segments
The Group’s operations are located in three (2006: three) AEBEBEITEZIR=—ALE (ZTZ X
main geographical areas. The following table provides F =) - T%%Tz{ NE B IR [E T35 5
an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical HMoHEIN  MAFTRERERBERE
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods and i
services.
North America - USA and Canada EEMN-ZERMEXR
South East Asia - Singapore and Japan R —#H MK kAR
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BELEXY BRIEEK @t
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLE| ZZTRF | ZEBLE | S35 | Z2ELE | ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FEx FAET
Hong Kong BB 13,102 17,116 - - 13,102 17,116
North America JEEM 8,205 1,812 - 84,322 8,205 86,134
South East Asia REsG 667,877 426,077 - - 667,877 426,077
689,184 445,005 - 84,322 689,184 529,327

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, and additions to property and
equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located.

Hong Kong N
North America 3L =M
South East Asia REE

Segment assets

ATRAIBEENEER ZREERYE
BEEREREREEMELR DT -

Capital expenditure

DHEE EXMX
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLE | TTRF | 2 LE | ZTEARF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ ‘000
FET TET FET TET
375,131 369,540 1,647 1,079
177,094 175,809 6 1,761
371,358 105,507 133,475 1,564
923,583 650,856 135,128 4,404




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2007

7. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest charges on:
Bank loans and overdrafts
wholly repayable within five years
Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years
Convertible debentures
Finance charges on finance leases
Other loans

FTREEER
THBBEZFE
BARAFAEZBEERZ

RITERRBEX
BERAFAZEEER
ZRITER

AR 5
Eiikolka
H Al & 5%

During the year, no finance costs incurred by the

discontinued operations. (2006: Nil)
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B=

7.

CETLFZASH-ALEE
A& A
2007 2006
—ETLF —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
1,468 5,235
4,772 1,493
8,737 6,930
42 76
2,434 =
17,453 13,734

FRN - BERIEXEBIEELETAREKRAS

(=

TTAF ) -

=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2007

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

74

Profit before income tax is B BT 15 8% Al i &8

arrived at affer Bk (G A)

charging/(crediting): WTEIE :
Operating lease charges Tl REFL &

on land and buildings BARX
Depreciation e

- Owned assets -BRAE

- Leased assets -HEEE
Amortisation of e

- intangible assets — St ATTBRA X
(included in LEMEE
administrative
expenses)

- Prepaid land leases —HATHRAZ
(included in BRAELES
administrative
expenses)

Impairment losses on trade & 5 & £t fE Y 08
and other receivables REER

Loss on disposals of HENE  KE
property, plant and REEZER
equipment

Loss on disposals of other HEHMEFEE
intangible assets ZER

Auditors’ remuneration ZEMME

- Current year -AEE

- Under provision in -BEFERETR
respect of prior year

Staff costs including E B AR
directors’ emoluments (BEESH:)
(note 13) Btz 13)
Exchange (gain)/loss, net  [EX (W) /BB %8
Gain on disposal of an HEB[TREZRE
investment property Wz 2 W
with deposit paid
Excess of the Group’s SERFKE

interest in the net fair HZAEREE

value of acquiree’s BERIABEZFR

identifiable assefs, REFATERBLZHKA
liabilities and confingent

liabilities over cost

Write off of goodwill R

Write off of bad debfs ZIRM bR

Gross rental income from  HENEBHEE WA
investment properties less i 7 11,265,000/ 1t
outgoings of HK$1,255,000 (ZZTZAF :

(2006: HK$586,000) 586,000/ 7T)

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

8. BRFT1SHAEF
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BFELEEY BRIER @t

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEERLE | ZTTRF | ZBELE | ZTTRF | ZBBLE | Z2TRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$‘000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FEx FEL FEx FEL FEx FEL
5,620 3,814 - 7,913 5,620 11,727
3,136 1,813 - 1,069 3,136 2,872
454 348 - 148 454 496
3,590 2,161 - 1,207 3,590 3,368

- - - 101 - 101

530 530 - = 530 530

26 8,121 - 233 26 8,354

416 4 - - 416 4

- - - 16 - 16

2,421 952 - 327 2,421 1,279

- 45 - = - 45
82,870 69,389 - 5,125 82,870 74,514
(2,505) 1,636 - - (2,505) 1,636
(3,884) = - = (3,884) =
(360) = - = (360) =
652 - - - 652 -
4,691 4,934 - - 4,691 4,934
(4,250) (1,325) - - (4,250) (1,325)




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits fax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated

Annual Report 2007
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“BBLEER

BE_TZLF-A=+—-HBLFE

9. FrE®xH
BB A

filr 51 FE SR B0/ F 4R

17.5% (BT NF : 17.5%) 2 F R {F 4 #
1 o BINGE *‘JfRIEE?Zzilﬁﬂ"ilﬁ‘“ EEB

on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates RATAMEE
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE T FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Current tax N ER B 18
- Hong Kong —&BH 2,256 634
- Overseas — g 9,404 -
Deferred tax (note 32) EERIE (B a£32) 12,814 (405)
24,474 229
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Current tax - overseas (note 10) RNEAFEIE — 8o (HfzE10) - 10,379
24,474 10,608

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Profit before income tax K BT 15 B4 A1 s A
Profit from discontinued operations IK BE&RIEERZmM
Share of losses of associates DI EEE AR 2 BB

BRETISH R o G5 & A Al
FER = A

Profit before income tax and share
of results of associates (including
continuing and disconfinued
operations)

BREAEFE  REEH
I8 R) AR @ 2 i A AR
17.5%=1 & (2006: 17.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T —I M E B E

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEFHRBRAZRIETE

Tax at domestic income tax rate
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%)

Tax effect of unused tax losses RERKRBARIEEEZ
not recognised MG &

Tax effect of prior year’s PRBTFERBERMIE
unrecognised tax losses BREBBTE

utilised this year

Other temporary differences Hi R R ERER
not recognised

Effect of different tax rates Hha xR EA
of subsidiaries in other jurisdictions MESRzZE

Income tax expense Frig &t 2 1

BIAX BRI E AR R E
mF

& 5 A8 iR

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
FET FET
40,555 18,633
- 94,519
1,249 13,159
41,804 126,311
7,316 22,104
24,175 60,450
(11,808) (62,034)
3,888 3,689
(183) (20,730)
(30) =
1,116 2.871)
24,474 10,608
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 16 December 2005, the Group entered intfo a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of Global Med
Technologies, Inc. ("GMT") which carried out all of the
Group’s health care activities. The disposal was effected
in order to generate cash flow for the expansion of the
Group’s ofther businesses and was completed on 16
December 2005, on which date confrol of GMT passed to
the acquirer. Details of the disposed subsidiary were set
out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated
28 December 2005 and 19 January 2006, respectively.

The profit for the year from the disconfinued operations is
analysed as follows:

Loss for the year of the
disconfinued operations

Gain on deemed disposal
of subsidiary

Gain on disposal of subsidiary
(note 42)

Income tax expense on gain on
disposal of subsidiary (note 9)

The results of the discontinued operations for the year up
fo the date of disposal were as follows:

ERIEEXEBZFEER
BAELE —RBLRZ K
HEN B LRz ks (A aE42)

HEMRBRRZ W2
PRiS B s (AfaE9)

Revenue &=
Expenses sl
Loss before income tax of BRIEEEZ
the discontinued operations R ET 1S B Al B 1B
Income tax expense BT 15 i 52 i
Loss for the year of the ERIEEBZ
discontinued operations FEEE

76
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BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

10. ER IR
®

—TTERF+-_A+B  KEBEFTMN—
HE B W=MNKMHEGlobal Med
Technologies, Inc. ([GMT]) (¢ &2 & & fr
BREER) - REHENATELARSESR
EUBRANEEEMEBMET - RELE
ERZZTTAF+=A+NBCMT 4l
EBRETIWER2EBER - B HEHREBAR
ZHBHERAARS BN =TT AFET A
ZHtNBRZZEEXRF-—A+ABREZA
15 K3 B A o

KEERIEEBZFEGMAMMT

2007 2006
S it —ETAE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T FHT
= (366)
= 553

- 94,332

- (10,379)

84,140

BERIEEBRBEZHERRIECFEEEN
™

2007 2006
=2RLE —BRAE
HK$°000 HKS/000
TRE FET

B 84,322

- (84,688)

- (366)

- (366)




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2007

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the disposed subsidiary

are as follows:
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BE-FTLF=AS+-BLEE

10 ERLER (&)
BHENBARFEELZFRERENT -

1.

Operating activities KT
Investing activities REEE
Financing activities BMEED
Net cash outflow FIR M

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of GMT,
Inc. at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 42,

Earnings per share

Basic, from the 2K
discontinued operations R EBEKIEERB

Diluted, from the e
discontinued operations REBKIEFE

Details on calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share from the discontinued operations are shown on note
12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$40,112,000 (2006:
HKS$53,138,000), a loss of HKS$3,183,000 (2006: profit of
HK$51,309,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

2007 2006
—EELE —TTAE
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAETT

= (7.661)

- (1,386)

- (9.047)

GMTRH & Al 2 B E S & E 2 iREE K

A2 R -

BREF

2007

—ETLE

N/ATE A

N/ATiE A

HK1.81 centsi#

HK1.75 centsi#

BHERLLEBZSRERNREERTN 25t

HHBERENMEI2-

1. ARBRERFB ABEER

ARAIEERBEARBGBFESAGNE
40,112,000/ 7T (— 2 Z 7<% : 53,138,0008
70) - MA%3,183,0008 T (ZEZREF : &
751,309,000/ 7T) 2 BEEEAR R B Z 7%

HRAPEIE o
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B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

78

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HKS$40,112,000 (2006: HKS$53,138,000) and on the
weighted average number of 1,705,756,000 ordinary
shares in issue (2006: 1,626,404,000) during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HKS$40,112,000 (2006: HKS$53,180,000) and on the
weighted average number of 1,793,450,000 ordinary
shares in issue (2006: 1,687,881,000) during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company, used in the basic BUFESRER
and diluted earnings per share R#ERF
calculation:
From confinuing operations REFBELCLEER
From discontinued operations REBKRIEER

Number of shares

Weighted average number of AEERELRRRNZ

ordinary shares for the purposes L IR N T 15 2
of the basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential BB E e
ordinary shares: 2 EER
Share options i R
Warrants RIEIERE
Weighted average number of SAEEREERA
ordinary shares for the purposes 2 g AR
of diluted earnings per share Hn#E T 5 £

As the convertible debentures and share options of the
Company’s subsidiaries ouftstanding during the two year
ended 31 March 2007 was anfi-dilutive fo the Group’s
earnings per share, diluted earnings per share were not
adjusted in this respect for both years.

12

AR TR A RF

BREF

FREARAEF DIZA R B REDRE ABG R
140,112,000 7t (= BT <4 : 53,138,000
BIT) &iWE?‘ﬁéLHﬁZBN&E?i@%&
1,705,756,000 (= ZZ X4 : 1,626,404,000)

=)
irE

HEREERNIREARBRERE A

&715/@%“40]]2000/%75(—* TREF
53,180,000/ 7T & F W E 3 17 & B AR I #E F
¥ 8 B 1,793,450,000( = T T X F

1,687,881,000) 5t & :

BREAREERNTRATEIRE

EF|

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FE T FET
40,112 23,689
- 29,449
40,112 53,138

g 4=
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE T
1,705,756 1,626,404
69,781 -
17,913 61,477
1,793,450 1,687,881

NREDRAIHBE—ZTELF=A=+—
EIJJ:ﬁﬁ BEEEzEREFIRFZHNHTEQ
Az AR B 5 R B AR RO I8 1 B BB A
RAEBOFRENFEREERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS)

Short term EHERERN
employment benefits
- Basic salaries - Z.N
- Housing allowances -FEREY
Share options grantedto BT EERESZ
directors and employees & % 1
Pension costs - defined R R4&H Ak A
contribution plans - TR

14.

Annual Report 2007 e
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BE-FTLF=AS+-BLEE

—BRLEER

13 BERBAAX (BEESHE)

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total

BELEER BRILEER Bt
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TEELEF | ZZTRE | Z2ELE | ZTTRE | ZBBLE | ZZTRE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
75,518 66,140 - 5,125 75,518 71,265
3,643 637 - - 3,643 637
1,049 1,687 - - 1,049 1,687
2,660 1,025 - - 2,660 1,025
82,870 69,389 - 5,125 82,870 74,514

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

14.1 Directors” emoluments

2007

Executive directors
Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Non-executive director
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent

non-executive directors
Lee Ka Leung Daniel (note a)
Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Da Roza Joao Paulo
Chian Yat Ping (note b)

“EELR
HITEE
BRiBE
BRE0E
REH
B E

FHITEF
BB AE

BUFHTEE

ZRB (f:a)

F %%

Da Roza Joao Paulo
#—F (ftitb)

14 E5HWRSREEAEH

141 EEM <
Salaries,

allowances Contribution

and to defined

benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total

HERBEM

e 2B RNEKER
e REVNEAN FEZMEX et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
- 25,910 132 26,042
- 1,944 78 2,022
- 8,999 132 9,131
- 830 62 892
120 - - 120
95 - - 95
120 - - 120
60 - - 60
92 16 - 108
487 37,699 404 38,590
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.1 Directors” emoluments (continued)

2006 —EETRE
Executive directors HITEZFE
Chan Heng Fai EY R
Chan Tong Wan PR 4 &
Chan Yoke Keow REE
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann =)
Non-executive director FHITEE
Fong Kwok Jen BB
Independent BUINITEF
non-executive directors
Lee Ka Leung Daniel EX ¥
Wong Dor Luk, Peter T 5%

Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo

*

This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment transaction” that is attributable
to the directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration in
respect of the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.

During the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

(@) Mr. Lee Ka Leung Daniel retired on 23 August 2006.

(b) Ms. Chian Yat Ping was appointed on 25 September
2006.

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

A EEHFHMRSREEBAENS

(%)
UVESME (&)

Salaries,
allowances Contribution
and  to defined
benefits contribution

Fees in kind* plans Total
Eapak-ohis
Fe o R FRAKERN
#Ee REWEMN 8 ZHX #Et
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ ‘000
TET FET TFHET FET
60 27,090 142 27,292
60 1,691 77 1,828
60 8,183 132 8,345
= 830 62 892
60 - - 60
240 = = 240
90 - - 90
60 - - 60
630 37,764 413 38,807

* BEREEEMEREERFE 25 [ARM
RIFBEFAREA -

BE_ZZLFR-_FTTERNF=A=1+—H
NESHET LTAZHEARZXRERE
ERME -

HE_ZTTHFR_TTREF=ZA=+—
B ARERERNESANEAME - (FR
BEMBINMBARBRF Z2FE - HER
BERcmE -

Ff 7

(@ FRBREER-_ZERFNA-_TZ=ZH#E
fEE o

(o) B—FREIR-_FZTRNFAA-_THBEZE
fEE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTtF=-PA=1T—HLEE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

14.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included four (2006:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one (2006: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e REBEREMREA
benefits in kind *
Contributions to defined

conftribution plans

The emoluments of these remaining one highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

i < &5

1,000,0017% Jt = 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,0017% 7T & 2,000,000/% 7T
2,000,001;% Jt £ 2,500,000/ 7T

Emolument bands

HK$1,000,001 to HKS1,500,000
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment tfransaction”.

During the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006, no
emolument was paid fo the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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14, %%%ﬁ%&%%&%ﬁké%%

142R&H AL

AEEAEBEAEHZSHATERENS
(ZZTRF:=ZR)EF - HBle=B
R EX 25N - FRER T Hék
—&(ZETRF : MB) ALzBem
T

2007 2006
—ETLE “EEAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
1,105 4,022

12 =

1,117 4,022

BT —EBHEEF AT ZHMEN T TE
g

Number of individuals

AH
2007 2006
ZETLF —TEREF
1 -
- 1
- 1
1 2

* BIERIEE B M 58S 2% B 258 A
Bt 3R] 2 3R

BE_ZTLERTTRF=ZH=+
— B AEEBEREMRSHFALX
MEMMEIERRBEL - MAXEE
SHINE AL B 2 22E) - SkBRER A E o
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP

At 1 April 2005 R-EEEEMA—H
Cost XA
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERRE
and impairment
Net book amount REFE

Year ended 31 March 2006

BE-ZTRRF=A=+-ALEE

Opening net book amount BOEEFE

Transfer fo investment properties ~ ERZHREHE

Additions NE

Arising from acquisition of a R I B — PR B B 1 A i 22 A
subsidiary (note 41) (Hia41)

Disposal of subsidiary
(note 42)

HE RN B AR (ffEd2)

Disposals &
Depreciation e
Closing net book amount HRREFE
At 31 March 2006 RZZETRF=A=1+—H
Cost W$@
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERRE
and impairment
Net book amount REFE

Year ended 31 March 2007

BE_ZZLF=-A=tALFE

Opening net book amount BOEEFE

Additions NE

Arising from acquisitions of Al — RN EARmEE
subsidiaries (note 41) (ftzt41)

Disposals &

Exchange realignment I 8 &

Depreciation e

Closing net book amount HREERE

At 31 March 2007
Cost

R=ZZLF=A=+—H
A

Accumulated depreciation ZHHERAE
and impairment
Net book amount FEFE

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

15. 2% - BERRB
E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and motor
Buildings improvements vehicles Total
HE B
BT NEEE  RERAE @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TAT THET TET
21,047 2,334 28,517 51,898
(332) (391) (18,226) (18,949)
20,715 1,943 10,291 32,949
20,715 1,943 10,291 32,949
9.592) - = (9.592)
= 1,408 2,949 4,357
= = 47 47
= = (2,468) (2.468)
= = (1,788) (1,788)
(270) (859) (2,239) (3,368)
10,853 2,492 6,792 20,137
11,348 3,742 27,257 42,347
(499) (1,250) (20,4695) (22,210)
10,853 2,492 6,792 20,137
10,853 2,492 6,792 20,137
= 996 2,651 3,647
1,242 62 1,076 2,380
(399) (84) (483)
4 14 288 306
(270) (935) (2,385) (3,590)
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397
12,595 4,110 30,411 47,116
(766) (1,880) (22,073) (24,719)
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397




Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

GROUP (continued)

All the buildings are located on the land with medium
tferms leases in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2007, certain
of the Group’s buildings with a net book value of
approximately HK$10,583,000 (2006: HK$10,853,000) has
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings
(note 29).

The net book value of furniture, fixtures and motor vehicles
included an amount of HK$2,198,000 (2006: HK$1,304,000)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.
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BE-FTLF=AS+-BLEE

15. M2 - BERRE (B)

rEE (&)
AEEENESHTHREOME -R_FT
tF=ZA=1+—R0B AKEEKEFED
10,583,000/ 7L (= F 2754 : 10,853,000%
L) 2B TRFEEMAURBRTER (M
29) -

B RERAENREFERE —Z/E
HETHAEE2198,0008 T (ZEZER
£ : 1,304,000 7T) °

COMPANY

At 1 April 2005
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2006
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2006
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

AN

Furniture,

fixtures and
motor vehicles
FEM - EBERARE

HK$’000
FAETT

R-ZZEZTRFNMA—H
R ANE 3,919
E i (2,266)
AR T F 58 1,653
BE_TTEXF=ZA=+—HILEE
HR ) BR M 5 R 1,653
NE 88
e @7
HA 4% BR T 5 5E 1,324
R-ZEERF=A=+—H
R ANE 4,007
2 E (2,683)
BREDF R 1,324
HE_ZZELE=-A=+—HIEE
BRI BR M 3 5 1,324
NE 99
& 2
e (363)
HRARBR T 3 58 1,048
R-_EZE+F=A=+—H
KA E 4,075
E i (3,027)
B T /F 58 1,048
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

16. PREPAID LAND LEASES

GROUP
The Group’s prepaid land leases and their net book value
are analysed as follows:

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

16 ANHEELESE

REH
AEEzHEEL MESERNKEMEER
B EEREESTAT

2007 2006
—EELHE ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
In Hong Kong held on: REBRHA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNFT+EERATF2EL 20,751 21,281
Opening net carrying amount HA 47 BR T % FE 21,281 32,091
Transfer to investment properties EREIREYHE - (10,280)
Annual charges of prepaid TET 4K & M E RIE
operating lease payment ZEEIH (530) (530)
Closing net carrying amount B4R BR T "R 20,751 21,281
Prepaid land leases T A & M B RIE
- Non-current portion —IERBE D 20,221 20,751
- Current portion (note) —mBE D (K7 5E) 530 530
20,751 21,281

Note: The current portion of prepaid land included in trade and
other receivables, deposits and prepayments (note 26).

As at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006, all of the Group’s
prepaid land leases have been pledged to secure the
Group’s bank borrowings (note 29).

M BREERERBEZRBFPEFTAES
REMEWKIE - B Re RIENFIE
FE26) A °

T e E= H=a HR=TTosE=
H AEEMARMNEELHHES
RS ARERZRITEE (M

%\M
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Notes to the Financial Statement Br 7% 8 = M &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTtF=-PA=1T—HLEE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWMZE
All of the Group’s investment properties are measured FIEAEBZ2IREMESKZ A FEERXG
using the fair value model. g
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the CEEEBBRTEIZREBE S A Halm
balance sheet can be summarised as follows: N
Group
&
2007 2006
—EELHF ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
Fair value AEE
Carrying amount at the beginning RE ) 2 IR
of the year 55,769 21,119
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W HE T B & R 35,735 -
Additions NE 93,366 -
Transfer from property, HEAME  BEKXE
plant and equipment - 9,592
Transfer from prepaid land leases EEAEM LS - 10,280
Transfer from properties held for sale  #E# 55 E9 % - 79
Net gain from fair value adjustments A& & &)~ W5 %58 78,351 4,956
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of HEREELTHREFERS
owner-occupied leasehold land KREYER ZEHBER
and buildings to investment
properties - 9,743
Exchange realignment bE 5 A& 12,484 -
Carrying amount at the end RELRZ REE
of the year 275,705 55,769
The Group’s interests in investment properties are held AEERBETINENFHBE ZREYE ¢
under the following lease terms:
2007 2006
—EETLHE ZETRFE
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
FET FE T
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong BEBzH AN E 31,158 28,751
Medium-term leases B 7 LASN 2 R BRFE 40 ) 3
outside Hong Kong 175,100 4,702
Freehold outside Hong Kong BB AN Z K A SR 5 69,447 22,316
275,705 55,769
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

86

Fair value AEE

Carrying amount at the REF 2 REE
beginning of the year

Transfer from properties held for sale iﬁ% BREEME

Net (loss)/gain from fair value ANEEAEZ
adjustments (BB W
Carrying amount at the end REKRZRER

of the year

The Company’s investment properties are held under the
following lease term:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong BAZFH AN

The investment properties in Hong Kong of the Group and
the Company were revalued as at 31 March 2007 by
Messrs Sallmans (Far East) Limited, an independent
professional valuers, on an open market basis.

The Group’s investment properties situated in the Canada,
were revalued as at 31 March 2007 by Messrs. Johnston,
Ross & Cheng Ltd. and Messrs Colliers International Realty
Advisors Inc., independent professional valuers, on an
open market basis. Investment properties situated in the
Singapore were revalued as at 31 March 2007 by Messrs
GSK Global Pte Ltd., an independent professional
valuer,on an open market basis. Investment properties
sifuated in USA were revalued as at 31 March 2007 by
Babcock & Macksoud Real Estate Appraisers and
Consultants, an independent firm of professional valuers,
on an open market basis. Investment properties situated
in Japan were revalued as at 31 March 2007 by Hokkaido
Kantei Co. Ltd., an independent professional valuers on
an open market basis.

The valuation is the valuers” opinion of the current open
market value, it implies “the best price” at which an
interest in a property might reasonably be expected to
be sold at the date of valuation, assuming:

a. a willing seller, willing buyer;

b. no account is to be taken of an additional bid by a
purchaser with a “special interest”;

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

17. REWE (&)

Company
YN

2007 2006
—EE2LHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FE T F#E T
1,200 -
- 79
(300) 1,121
900 1,200

ARRRETINENFHFTE 2KLENE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
HK$°000 HKS ‘000
FETT FE&T

900 1,200

AEBRARARBEZREMER-_ZZ
tF=A=+"HABYEXRGHEARAAM
CER) BR DR DTS EEEITER o

Kﬁguﬂbﬂiﬁz/@?\\&ﬁmﬁﬁéfy =
tF =A==+t EBEHBIEXGHER

Messrs. Johnston, Ross & Cheng LTd.)SZ
Messrs Colliers International Realty
Advisors Inc. ?ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ?&ﬁéﬁ o fi
REMEZRENER=—_STLF=A=1
—HBBIZEFEAERFGCSK Global Pte
LdZARMSEEETEMR - URERZ
KEMER ST LF=A=1+—"HBEBEL
= ¥ (51 A]Babcock & Macksoud Reall
Estate Appraisers and Consultants &2 A
FAMBEEEETEMN URBAZKREME
RZZEZE+F=A=+—"HHBIUEREMHEE
A F]Hokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd.f& (& °

EXMEDGEARKRREARMSEEZ
BRCERRNETHEER  ZWEATS
BEAAREEREE  XER

a HREEZHEEBRED

b. BAZEREHLEFELER



Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

17.

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

c. that prior to the date of valuation, there had been a
reasonable period (having regard to the nature of
the property and the state of the market) for the
proper marketing of the interest, for the negoftiation
and agreement of price and terms for the
completion of the sale; and

d. that the price reflects the state of the market and
other circumstances at the date of valuation.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to HK$5,505,000 (2006: HK$1,911,000).

No income or direct operating expenses were recognised
during the year for investment property that was unlet
during the year.

As at 31 March 2007, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$262,100,000 (2006:
HK$51,369,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
bank borrowings (note 29).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY

Investments at cost ®E - mEA
Unlisted shares
Less: Provision for impairment

R E R

Amounts due from subsidiaries —FERNKB R A RRK
within one year
Interest bearing at 10% per

annum

R EEF E10%5T 8

Non-interest bearing =)
Less: Provision for impairment B R ERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries —F R R E R F FHIE

within one year

LA - ERAE

Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZZ L FFH

B R R MR

B=

17.

18.

—BELESASH—RILEE

BREWME (#)

c. WMEERZH - BHEARERME(REE
B R R 55 R) AT AT R
ER 2 EE R AR R

d ZERRBRMGEEHZTHERLEM

AEERARAREREWEMBNZ
7 % I A % 5,505,000/ 7T (Z T ERNF -
1,911,0008T) - MERKREMETIIREE
HAHEH -

FAMER 2 RAREH 2 RE Y ERERE
MRAREREER

R-ZZEZLF=A=+—H AKEETER
[ 58 /% 262,100,000/ 7T (= ZZ X F ¢
51,369.000/ L) 2 R EMFEE THIMF - LB
AEEZRITEE (FaE29) -

NENGIA - PN
R (B R B~ = FIR)

NN

2007 2006
—eEtE —EEAE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
94,032 96,045
(79,814) (81,827)
14,218 14,218
300,095 24,104
265,215 492,391
565,310 516,495
(308,505) (311,310)
256,805 205,185
56,075 46,001
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2007

are as follows:

Name

=L

Anglo-French Travel Pte. Ltd

China Credit Card Limited

China Credit Singapore Pte Ltd*

China Xpress Pte. Ltd*

Dicoyutai AFT Travel
Services Pte Ltd*

eBanker USA. Com. Inc.

Global Growth
Management, Inc.

Hotel Room Xpress International
Limited (formerly known as
Global Med China &

Asia Limited) * (nofe b)

88

Place/country of
incorporation/operation
and kind of legal entity
BMEY EEREER
REEERER

Singapore,
limited liability company
MK ERR A

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
RERAHESERAR

Singapore,
limited liability company
AR B R A Al

Singapore,
limited liability company
MK ERR A

Singapore,
limited liability company
MK R A

United States of America,
limited liability company
EHEERBEBRAA

Canada,
limited liability company
MERERAF

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
RERAHEBERAR

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRER/
BRUE-EN-F

$$1,800,000
1,800,000 3% 7T

Us$100
100% 7T

$$13,417,282
13,417, 2825 I3 7

$$5,670,002
5,670,002 i 3% 7T

$$100,000
100,000 /3% 7T

Common stock
US$26,551

One Series

A preferred
stock (nofe a)
@ % 26,551 % T
—RAZTIEER
(Fizta)

Us$1,000
1,000% 7

HK$1,051,596,352
1,051,596,3527% 7t

“ERLF=A=T

Percentage of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company
KRR i

BETRA/HERA

Directly Indirectly

B 4%

% %

- 60

- 91

100 =

- 98.8

- 60

= 35

- 100

- 98

B R R MR

B= —HIEFE

Principal
activities

TREH

Travel and tourist agent

RERE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
RAZK

Investment holding
REER

Travel and tourist agent
IR E

Financial investment
SREE

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding
REER
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 18. NB AR 2w HEBARKX
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) R (ERMBRARRE) (£)

Place/country of Particulars of issued Percentage of issued
incorporation/operation share capital/  capital/registered capital  Principal
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Company activities
BREVE-F 3 E V4= ES BRTRER/ L NGINigsS
a8 REEEEER gMERER BRARE/HERE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B &
% %
Global Med Intemnational British Virgin Islands, US$1,000 = 100 Investment holding
Limited* (nofe b) limited liability company 1,000% 1T REER
RERNHEBARAA
Heng Fung Capital Hong Kong, HK$2 100 - Securities investment
Company Limited limited liability company 28T EHFRAE
EEREBFRAA BEEERAA
Global Med International British Virgin Islands, Us$1,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited* (note b) (Kfib) limited liability company 1,000% T REER
RERLZEBERAR
Heng Fung Capital Canada, C81 100 - Property investment
(Canada) Inc. limited liability company 1MERT MERE
MERERAF
Heng Fung Underwriter Hong Kong, HK$2 100 = Securities frading
Limited Limited liability company 28T EFEBE
BEEERAA
Heng Li Card Consultancy & The People’s Republic HK$1,000,000 - 100 Card processing
Services (Shenzhen) Co. Lid. of China, wholly-owned 1,000,000% 70 ERNEE
EFIRH RS (RI) FRAA foreign enterprise
REAREMBENEBELE
Hong Kong Express Holidays Hong Kong, HK$1,260,240 = 100 Travel and fourist agent
Limited (formerly known as limited liability company 1,260,240% 7T IR E
Hong Kong Xpress Travel EBERAA
Limited)
EEBBABRAR REA
BERRKEARAA)
Hotel Room Xpress Limited Hong Kong, HK$500,000 - 100 Hotel Room agent
limited liability company 500,000/ 10 BEERRE
EBERAR
Hotel Room Xpress Pte Ltd Singapore, 81 = 100 Hotel Room agent
limited liability company 137 003 T BEERRE
MK R A A
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

90

Name

=L

Ichi Ni San Enterprises
Company Limited

Japan Xpress Limited

Japan Xpress Hospitality
Limited

Japan Xpress Travel Limited

Keng Fong America
Enterprises Limited
BREXBECEERAA

Keng Fong Canada
Enterprises Limited
BEMEALEBRAT

Keng Fong Foreign
Investment Co. Ltd

Keng Fong Malaysia
Enterprises Limited
RESKRROERERAA

Xpress Finance Limited
(formerly known as Online
Credit Card Limited)

ERBEERRA

(AIREABRERRERAH

Place/country of
incorporation/operation
and kind of legal entity
BMEY EENY AR
REEERER

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BEERAR

Japan,
limited liability company
BHABRBRAT

Japan,
limited liability company
BARRRE

Japan,
limited liability company

BAERAR

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
EEERAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BERARAA

United Stafes of America,
limited liability company
ZHREREARARA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
EEERAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BERARAT

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

Particulars of issued

share capital/

registered capital

BRTRA/
HMEREs

HK$10,000
10,0007% 7T

JPY10,000,000
10,000,000(

JPY495,000,000
495,000,000H

JPY10,000,000
10,000,000H

HK$1,500,000
1,500,0007% 70

HK$10,000
10,0007% ¢

U$$250,000
250,000% 7

HK$100,000
100,0007% 70

Ordinary
HK$133,866,230
LER
13,866,230 7T

18. E"Bﬁ%
Zl'}\/ ll\ﬂkﬁj%i\\ j

Percentage of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company
NGINiigsS

BRARE/BEZRE

Directly Indirectly
Hi &

% %

100 -

- 60

- 100

- 78

100 -

100 =

- 100

100 -

- 72

5] 2 2

#,/ B AR

D

XIH) (&)

m=

Principal
activities

TEEH

Property holding
NERE

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Property investment
and development
NERERER

Investment holding

REZR

Credit card services
ERARRS
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RERARBAERAA

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 18. E"Bﬁ% EZ%E/ RPN
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) =R 9( B B A B FNIE) (&)
Place/country of Particulars of issued Percentage of issued
incorporation/operation share capital/  capital/registered capital  Principal
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Company activities
AL/ EEHY /AR BRTRER/ L NGINigsS
a8 REEEEER gMERER BRARE/HERE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B &
% %
Makino Air Travel Japan, JPY50,000,000 - 52 Travel and tourist agent
Service Co. Ltd. limited liability company 50,000,0008 RERE
BABRAR
Nihon Kotsu Travel Service Japan, JPY80,000,000 - 100 Travel and tourist agent
Co. Ltd. limited liability company 80,000,000H igiAAgE
BHABRBRAT
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong, HK$1,260,000 - 100 Investment holding
(formerly known as limited liability company 1,260,0007% 7. REER
Online Credit Limited) BEEBRAA
(IBABBEEARAR)
Online Discount Cord Limited Hong Kong, HK$12,000,000 = 91 Discount card services
HREERRERA limited liability company 12,000,000% & BERR%
EBERAA
Rasa Sayang Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100 = Securities investment
limited liability company 10,0007% 1 EHRE
BEERAT
Sapporo Holdings Co. Lid. Japan, JPY3,000,000 - 100 Hotel holding company
limited liability company 3,000,000 BIE R A
RAFRAE
Singapore Service Singapore, $$1,250,000 - 100 Property holding
Residence Pte Ltd limited liability company 1,250,000% M3 7T MEZER
B R A Al
SingXpress Investment Singapore, $$800,000 = 100 Investment holding
Pte Ltd (formerly known limited liability company 800,000%7 3 7T RERR
as SingXpress Pte Ltd)* MEER AR
(B8 ASingXpress Pte Ltd) *
SRI Group Limited British Virgin Islands, USS1 = 100 Investment holding
limited liability company (E RERR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

Place/country of Particulars of issued
incorporation/operation share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital
AMAL/ EEHY /AR BRTRER/
£8 REEEEER ZMEAER
Suntec 23 Floor Pte Ltd Singapore, $$2,600,001
limited liability company 2,600,001%7 13 7T
MK B RA A
Sure World Capital Limited British Virgin Islands, US$50,000
limited liability company 50,000 1o
RERAHEBERAR
Aussie Xpress Pty Ltd Australia, AUD355,000
(formerly known as limited liability company 355,000 10
Tarron Holdings Pty Ltd)* BMERA A
(B17& ATarron Holdings Pty Ltd) *
Wai Kin Investment Hong Kong, HK$600,000
Company Limited limited liability company 600,000/ 10
BREXERAA EBERAA
Notes:

a. The Group holds a 35% interest in eBanker USA.com, Inc.

18. E"Bﬁ%

(“eBanker”) and control equivalent proportion of voting
right. In addition, the Group holds one share of eBanker
series A preferred stock, which entitles the Group to 50% of
the vote for the Board of Directors of eBanker. Therefore,
eBanker is accounted for as a subsidiary.

In last year, the year end date of these subsidiaries is 31
December accordingly the financial information of these
subsidiaries that are consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are drawn up to that year
end date. Adjustments have been made for the effect of
significant transactions or other events that occur between
1 January to 31 March.

In this year, the year end date of these subsidiaries is 31
March and the financial information of these subsidiaries
that are consolidated into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are drawn up from 1 January 2006 to
31 March 2007 but excluding the effect of significant
transactions or other events that occur between 1 January
2006 to 31 March 2006.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*

These subsidiaries are not audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong or other Grant Thornton International member firms
and the net assets of which amounted to approximately
10% (2006: 30%) of the Group’s net assets.

=2 B ARR
K/ ,‘\nIFﬁE’D\T XIH) (&)

Percentage of issued

D

capital/registered capital  Principal
held by the Company activities
NGINiigsS
BRARE/BEZRE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi &
% %
- 100 Property holding
VESEL
100 - Investment holding
REER
= 94 Travel and tourist agent
IRERE
100 - Investment holding
RAEER
M et

a. 7N % @ # A eBanker USA. com, Inc.
([eBanker|) 35%#E # + I #2% # [F & b 2
BE=H - B AEEFH —Rebanker A
RIEBEERKR  ZBRHOEKTASEEOS
eBankerZE & E# o E it © eBanker?ll
YEKT B A 7

b. *:%F ZEWBRARZFHERAT-_A=1
—B - At ZEMBRAEAEEZEE
BBRRGEAAZHBENTBEZFE
Bit - ARRER®—A—HE=ZA=+—H
BECZBERARGREMEBALZLZEELR
# o

’%\E ZEMBRARAZEHAR=ZA=T—
CZEWBRAREAEE KA PERE
i?él\qu)\Zﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂEEf?;/\ifﬂ*El
RE—ZZLF=A=+—HIL  BTEHE
F—zg/\ﬁi ﬁ EIj:—? 7/\¢ Hi
T—RLEZERRGREMER -

ERIHNEERATER EARB XA EEFE
ZASBMEEWNBAR - EERA - M EMmH
BRRERKERBEBRITE

Y WEREAFLIFHRE B E Sa T A
1 E BB B A AlEE - AREGLAEE
FEERI0%(—FENEF - 30%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-HA=T—HLEE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE RN B 2 B
Group Company
~EE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELF | 22T RF | ZEELE | Z2ERF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET Fi&T FET F&T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRG - BEAE - - 5,385 5,385
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 14,965 16,424 - -
Goodwill on acquisition KEEEZHE 1,045 1,045 - -
16,010 17,469 5,385 5,385
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE - - - (5,385)
16,010 17,469 - -
Amounts due from Bt & A B R 5K
associates within one year (—F A EE) 6,577 3,223 1,521 3,223
Amounts due to associates —F U EHE RS RN ERIA
over one year 236 - - -

As at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006, amounts due

RZETZ+LF=RA=1+—
from associates are unsecured, interest free and A=+—H B&A ﬂﬂ%ﬂ?ﬁlﬁﬂ,ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
repayable on demand. BB RBERBANERE -
Particulars of the principal associate at 31 March 2007 RZZETEF=RA=1+—HZEZEHELE QA
are as follows: BRI
Particulars of Country of Percentage of
Name issued shares held incorporation interest held
Z18 FEFERITRAZER =F i B% 32 Bl =X FiEERE Dt
SingXpress Ltd. (formerly known Ordinary share of Singapore 45.6%
as “Futuristic Group Limited”) no par value MRS
EEHEZLTBR
SingXpress Ltd. is listed in Singapore, the market value of SingXpress LA R EFT N £ - AR =T
the listed shares as at 31 March 2007 is approximately TtHF=ZA=t+t—"BRKRZWMEEA
HK$22,202,000 (2006: HK$29,235,000). 22,202,000/ 7t (Z 2= /54 : 29,235,000/
JT) °
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associate extracted from its annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities =R
Revenues A
Profit/(loss) wmF L (ER)

There has been no movement of goodwill arising from
acquisition of associates, amounting to HK$1,045,000
during the year.

The associate of the Group listed above, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

SingXpress Limited has a financial year end of 31
December which is not conterminous with the Group. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the financial statements of SingXpress Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2006 have been used, and
appropriate adjustments have been made for the effects
of significant transactions between that date and 31
March 2007.

94

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

19 REtE QT 2 fEm (8)

NTHEEAEERERAAEE-_STLF
+Z A=+ BUEFEZFRZUEERE
C= /(i N

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
47,287 90,490
11,402 54,472
42,986 78,504
5,952 (28,857)

N U B B & A ] 1,045,000 7T 3 % 2 A 7Y
EEEF) o

Li’%’i‘]%ﬁ%%*’ REIBFEAKBARFEEE
FARERABOBEEFEZAREEE

Hﬁ%%’&j BEE=RA - M7 HEMkERw

BRSEREANILE °

SingXpress Limitedz B % & st i A+ =
A=+—H8 B3R ALE - SingXpress
LmitedBERtEBE_TTNF+=_A=+—
BIEFEZHBREFAERSE  EE
MZBEBE_ZTTLF=A=+—HHMM#E
TEARGZZEBELEE AL -
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20. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

21.

On 28 August 2006, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a vendor to acquire investment
properties in Singapore at a cash consideration of
Singapore dollars ("S$”) 13,282,000 (HK$65,748,000). As at
31 March 2007, HK$7,664,000 was paid by the Group as a
deposit for this acquisition. The fransaction will be
completed on or before 30 November 2013.

The balance as at 31 March 2006 related to the deposit
paid for the acquisition of the investment properties in
Singapore at a cash consideration of $$13,469,000
(HK$63,332,000). Such investment properties was disposed
of during the year before the fransaction was completed
and a gain of HK$3,884,000 was noted.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
GROUP

Non-current R ED
Equity securities [EENE
Listed outside Hong Kong, REBLASN £

at fair value

Unlisted, at cost JEET - A E

Debt securities, at cost (note)
Unlisted in Hong Kong
Unlisted outside Hong Kong

NEBIE LT

Total BE

Market value of listed equity securities A B %5 2 HE

Note:

The debt securities represent club membership which is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses as they do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whole fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

MEEIAIND T IE £

|

B=

20.

21.

R ATE

BB ES - BEAE (Fi2)

Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZTZT+HFFR

BH R M

—BELESASH—RILEE

RHike

R-EEXENA-+/N\BH AEEE—F
BRIV EBEEHEARBH N ZEEY
2 .18 4 K E A 13,282,0005 M % T
(65,748,000 L) - R=ZZEZE+F=A=+
— B - NEE B 7,664,000/ TT1E AU IR
T WEHRXSER-_ZT—=F+—HA=+H
AR FEAK ©

“ERTERFA=T B ZERBARN B
RIIME 2 RENMEZEN KRS  BERE
7313,469,000%7 i3 7T (63,332,000 7T) °
BRXREGREXAMERFRAEE R
3,884,000/ 7 2 & 7| °

AHEEEmEE
RE
2007 2006
e i —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
42,417 12,085
21 312
42,438 12,397
1,425 1,425
1,952 417
3,377 1,842
45,815 14,239
42,417 12,085

BEEESEEERMS LY BT SREZENE
o HERXTPESERFEE - WIRKAR R
EERYIR -

S5
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22. GOODWILL
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GROUP

BEEERRR

o

Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

22

The main changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill
result from the acquisition of Nihon Kotsu Travel Service
Co. Ltd. and Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. as well as the
impairment of previously recognised goodwill. The net
carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

At beginning of the year

Gross amount

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Carrying amount

Net carrying amount at beginning
of the year

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42)

Provision for impairment

Carrying amount at 31 March

At 31 March
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

GROUP

F1
B
REHE#E FORE

]

N ) 2 BR T #E

W iE % R P B X R (Bt aZ41)
HE — R B QR (FaE42)
ERI=RE ]
MR=RA=+—HZKREHA
R=HA=+-—H
fREEAR

2iRE

BREF A

Subsequent to the annual impairment test, the carrying
amount of goodwill is allocated to the following cash

generating units:

Travel related operations
- in Singapore
- in Australia
- in Japan

Hotel operations
- in Japan

Carrying amount

Bix 3z 8 B8 5= %5
— # N
— M
- AR

B IE 5
— B

AREF R

B R R MR

B=

—BELESASH—AILEE

B

EE

&4 B Y BENihon Kotsu Travel Service Co.
Ltd. % Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. 2 &£ 2
FEERENEERABDEZRBEZETES
o HBEZEEFEUSNMAOT

2007 2006
—sEtE “EEAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT F BT
7,037 28,599
- (14,323)
7,037 14,276
7,037 14,276
12,570 652
- (7.891)
(652) =
18,955 7,037
19,607 7,037
(652) =
18,955 7,037
rE
REERENR 2% BRZEAREHE
EUTRSEEBLL -
2007 2006
S i —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT F BT
6,385 6,385
= 652
5,582 =
6,988 =
18,955 7,037
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Notes to the Financial Statement Br 7% 8 = M &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-HA=T—HLEE

22. GOODWILL (continued) 22. & (&)
The recoverable amounts for the cash generating units LiReELEEN 2B BEEAER
given above were determined based on value-in-use FE BEFAN=FEHETE - WRAT
calculations, covering a detailed three-year budget plan, BEEXRHEEHEHREM - WRERMERHA
followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at EBHRETFHER :

the growth rates stated below. The growth rates reflect
the long-term average growth rates for the product
respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value in use RERAEEAEMACEERSE
calculations
Hie 355 A B 2E 75 B JE T
Travel related operations Hotel business
2007 2006 2007 2006

“EELF | ZFTREF | S2BLE | Z2ERF
Growth rates R X 6.30% 4.6% 0% -
Discount rates B 37 & 11.60% 8.6% 5% -
The Group’s management’s key assumptions for the AEE ETERFZBHEEEERBEERS
Group have been determined based on past LEBsmSEREBEMET - FTA 2 INE
performance and its expectations for the market TR EHERREAH B ° FT
development. The weighted average growth rates used BZBRETARNT R REEGBEEED F
are consistent with the forecasts included in industry HEZEERR -
reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating fo the relevant segments.
GROUP REE
The related goodwill impairment loss of HK$652,000 (2006: 6 B 7 R B 18 652,000 L (=2 Z N
Nil) was included under “other operating expenses” in FB)ERKEERFATHELEH
the income statement and attributed to the Group's X WEHEBAEEREMABLR
fravel related operations.
Apart from the considerations described in determining KRETE LMREELESEC ZFEABERALE
the value in use of the cash generating units above, the BREZN  AEEERERRIL AMEBRH
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other fth P BEME BB - ABIARSR B 2 E B 5T

probable changes that would necessitate changes in its ELEE o
key estimates.
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE

98

GROUP

BEHER-FER
BBER-FEA
o HE R — EER

Term loans - secured
Mortgage loans - secured
Installment loans - unsecured

Net carrying amount (note a, b)
Less: amounts due within one year
included under current assets

B IARBDEEZ

SIANGERBEEZ
—F R HHA

Amounts due affer one year
included under non-current assets

During the year, the Group granted a term loan to a
minority shareholder of two subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Japan Xpress Limited and Japan Xpress Travel
Limited. The balance is secured by the equity interests in
these two subsidiaries held by this minority shareholder,
interest-free and repayable within twelve months.

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% over prime
intferest rates in Hong Kong (2006: 0.5% over prime interest
rates in Hong Kong) per annum and are repayable by
instalments up to year 2011. The loans are secured by
mortgages over properties placed by the borrowers. The
mortgage loans are repayable on demand due to the
default on repayment by the borrowers.

GROUP

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 5.5% to
18.0% per annum. The repayment tferms of the loans are
negotiated on an individual basis.

fRmEERE (Mfita - b)

—FREHRIA

|

B=

23.

BHRME

“EE+F=ZR=F+—HILFE
FE W & X
REE
2007 2006
—EELE —ETRE
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FAETT
1,954 1,175
614 614
890 789
3,458 2,578
(3,008) (2,441)
450 137

FAR - AEERARRRERE RS RIA
Japan Xpress Limited & Japan Xpress
Travel Limitedz —& L # IR R X L —HE #
BR o 8REETY AR D BRAR IR A 5% A L B B 2
RIFTR A 2 IREEERR - 2RERARTZE
AREE -

BIBERDIEEBREEMNENE (ZF
TZRF  BEREEMNXN05E) & F&t
B BAR—T-——FHoHEE - ZFE
RIABERAER Z M ERBEER - R
ERABRER - WRBERARBAE

)

.

i

%H
HE Ry N F5.5[2 £ 18.02 < F 5 E5t
%5 B R E IR (A R B AEHFT

em

by

=
o

aul



Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The maturity profile of the loans receivable at the balance
sheet date, which is analysed by the remaining periods to
their contractual maturity dates, is as follows:

24,

Notes:

(@

On demand
Three months or less
Over three months

but less than one year
One to four years

®)

BB A
=ZEAHNRT
BE=EAEIR—F

—EPF

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of loans

receivable approximate their fair values.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:

Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

Less: Pledged bank fixed
deposits shown under
non-current assets

Less: Pledged bank fixed
deposits shown under
current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

RORERFEES
B ER1T 17 3K

o ERBEET
EHEMRT
EHFK

W OmRBEET
EHEMRTT
i RE A

RehBReEEER

Annual Report 2007 e

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=AS+-BLEE

23. BWE K (&)
R B R B B 2 B R R
A2H TEMERZHHFMT -

—BRLEER

HEHEH

Mia -
(@
2007 2006
—EZTLHF —TEREF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHT FET
2,569 614
82 291
357 1,536
450 137
3,458 2,578
b) EFRAERERGEHFEAERTEE
g 13
2. R RASHEARMEERR
TER
RekReFEBHEBEATSE :
Group Company
rEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLE | ZETRF | ZB2LEFE | 2T RHF
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FET FHET FEx FET
41,497 168,489 1,832 307
154,461 213,317 53,932 204,327
195,958 381,806 55,764 204,634
(4,385) 4,219) - -
- 4,771) - -
191,573 372,816 55,764 204,634

SIS
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
month depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
tferm time deposits af fixed rates ranging from 3.81% to
6.03% (2006: 1.5% to 3.8%) per annum. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the
pledged deposits approximate their fair values.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$6,531,000 (2006: HK$2,705,000) of bank balances
denominated in US dollars ("USD") placed with banks in
US and Singapore, HKS$7,716,000 (2006: HK$5,318,000) of
bank balances denominated in Singapore dollars (“S$”)
placed with banks in Singapore, HK$30,628,000 (2006:
HKSNiIl) of bank balances denominated in Japanese yen
(“Yen") placed with banks in Japan and Hong Kong.

The non-current portion of pledged deposits represented
the time deposits placed as securities for the credit card
business transactions. The pledged deposits which will
mature within fwelve months after the balance sheet date
are classified as current assefts.

25. INVENTORIES

GROUP

The amounts represent premium items for credit card
holders.

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables B 5 & W IE
Deposits paid, prepayment Btz & - BN KB
and other receivables R E th & U SR IE

(note) (HiaE)
Prepaid operating lease TEf 4 & & RE
payment (note 16) (KizE16)

100

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

24,

25.

26.

BeRRESEEBEMDERR
TR (&)
THIRIT 2 B E RIES B R R XK
REHAE - REFEEHRESERZ 214
i EHEMERE - BR—EABRT
% U BIMREEESTAERENT
381EXE603E (ZZERF : 1.5EE38
B)zETFNEHEZAE - RERRES
SEAAZEEFRLATEEE -

FARAEERTEBESERBRITER
6,531,000/ 7T (ZZZ /X% : 2,705,000
L) BET([ET]) 23 FHRREBRK
AN IRTT - IRITAERT7,716,0008 T (= F
ZRF : 5,318,000/ 7T) + ET MK T (3
METT]) 25 - FHRRE I IRTT - RITE
£:30,628,000% T (Z T /RF : &) ZHE
(TEED 2% - FHRRAARAREBRT °

EEMEFTNERDBOAREEHARES
RHERBHERZEHER - FRAEHER
BT EANBANEERERD BERDE
2= o

ﬁ 4
rE
ZRAEREGEANEAEAZER -
ESRHEMBWFIE  REeERTE
(B
Group Company
RE NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

“EELF | —ETRF| ZBB2LEE | —TTRF

HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ ‘000
FET TBTT FET TET

79,498 55,369 - 164
51,497 25,205 803 432
530 530 = =
131,525 81,104 803 596
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Notes to the Financial Statement Br 7% 8 = M &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-HA=T—HLEE
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 26. B 7 HMEKRFRIE - RERTE
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) ﬁ;ﬁ’\ IE (,.,,\)
The directors of the Group considered that the fair values AEEESRRBEIRAMEBKRFKBZ AT
of trade and other receivables are not materially different ERAEFABTEEAEZE  AZRES8ER
from their carrying amounts because these amounts have EERIAGENIER -
short maturity period on their inception.
The average credit terms granted by the Group to its AEBLHTHESRPZTFHAEERAT ¢
frade customers are as follows:
Hotel operations 60 days
B 5 ST 60H
Travel related operations 30 days
I 5% A8 B8 2 7% 30H
Credit Card holders for retail sales up to 56 days interest free repayment period
ERRHEAZEER & %560 % 5 &K
Note: Include in other receivables, there was an amount due Kzt - T AHMBKRRIELS —ERKAZEAN TR
from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$787,000 1H787,000 T (ZZZRF : ) - Z&MR
(2006: Nil). The balance is unsecured, interest free and RERT  LERAREKER FAK
repayable on demand. The maximum amount outstanding = P& W3R 38 /& 787,000/ 7T °
during the year is HK$787,000.
At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of the REBHA  BEERFBEBIRERSTWOT :
frade receivables is as follows:
Group Company
~EE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
TEELE | ZETRF| ZBELE | ZTTRF
0 - 60 days 02 60H 70,462 49,606 - 164
61 - 90 days 61£290H 3,306 1,165 - -
Over 90 days 90H M £ 5,730 4,598 - -
79,498 55,369 - 164
The Group has recognised a loss of HK$26,000 (2006: ArEEERRBEEZE—_TETLtF=A=+—H
HK$8,121,000) for the impairment of its trade receivables \EFE 2B 5 1R R IE R 8 5 18 26,0007 7T
during the year ended 31 March 2007, (ZZTZT N4 : 8,121,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statement Br 7% 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-H=T—HLEE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 27, RAFEFAEBGZZERMERE
PROFIT OR LOSS

GROUP IRE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —TTRE
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET F#E T
Listed securities EHES
Equity securities - Hong Kong N 141,453 3,572
Equity securities - outside Hong Kong — B& K& % — & 78 LA Sh 37,359 35,931
Market value of listed securities rTmEH2HE 178,812 39,503
COMPANY AT
2007 2006
—TTEHF —EEREF
HK$°000 HKS000
FET FE T
Listed securities EWESH
Equity securities - & 7K 3B %

Hong Kong BB 140,220 2,297
Market value of listed securities EmBEHE2ME 140,220 2,297
The above financial assets are held for trading purpose. LiEMEEDNRFIEEERR - BAFEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are ANERZEREENRERERTIEREE
presented within the section on operating activities as BeHBoEBaMEHNRKEETE —HiF o
part of changes in working capital in the cash flow
statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

E%Tﬁm
E A JE 5 50
&E%%ﬁ(%%)

Trade payables
Other payables and
accrued expenses (note)

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods
ranging from 30 - 60 days. Based on the invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the tfrade payables were as follows:

0 - 60 days 0£260H
- 90 days £90Hd
Over 90 days 90H LA £

Note: Included in other payables, these were an amount due to
a subsidiary of an associate of the Group of HK$358,000
(2006: Nil). The balance is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2007 e

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=+—-HBLFE

—BRLEER

28. EZ R HAMERIE
Group Company
rEH NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELF | ZEERF| ZEELF | Z2EREF
HK$°000 HKS’000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FExT FET FET FET
60,655 20,337 - -
39,633 14,236 7,587 2,255
100,288 34,573 7,587 2,255
RNEEZ HERRTASEREZE60H
BEZEAE 85 kEMENRIEREKER
DT -
Group Company
~EE YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELEF | ZTEREF| ZEEEE | 22T RF
HK$°000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS 000
FEx FET FEx FAET
59,535 19,420 - -
310 85 - -
810 832 - -
60,655 20,337 - -
Hta - %Z@%EE#/\,HJMEH KRB E
TZWE T358000?P§7E<477/\
F:T)ZF Iﬁcsz,%ﬁ%f—s%}fwﬁ EEp=
REARERER
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

29. BORROWINGS

Non-current IR E
Bank borrowings RITEE
Mortgage loans RBE R
Current B
Bank borrowings RITEE
Mortgage loans RBE R
Bank overdrafts HRITHE X
Total borrowings BES

At 31 March 2007 and 2006, the above borrowings were
repayable as follows:

On demand or RRAK—FRN
within one year
More than one year, but

not exceeding two years

BE—FEIENME

More than two years, but BRMEEIRASF
not exceeding five years

More than five years iR F

Less: Amount due within W mBBEET—FR

one year shown 2| Hi 2 k18

under current liabilities
Amount due afterone year JERTEFE N —F1%
shown under non-current
liabilities

104

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

29. B &
Group Company
rE RAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EERLE | ZZ2TRF | Z2ELEFE | ZTTRF
HK$°000 HKS’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
30,007 321 - -
104,616 34,351 - -
134,623 34,672 - -
33,515 15,078 - -
6,428 3,578 - -
3,390 9.733 - -
43,333 28,389 - -
177,956 63,061 - -
RZZETEFR=ZTETAF=A=+—H "
FiFTAREERARATFHRER :
Group Company
A% AR
2007 2006 2007 2006
TEELE | ZZETRF | ZB2LE | T RF
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS$ 000
FHET TET FE T TFET
43,333 28,389 - -
23,153 4,069 - -
47,021 11,955 - -
64,449 18,648 - -
177,956 63,061 - -
(43,333) (28,389) - -
134,623 34,672 - -




Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2007

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s borrowings
are secured by certain of the Group’s assets (note 33).

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal
fo confracted interest rates) on the borrowings are as

follows:

Group

Bank borrowings

Mortgage loans

Bank overdraft

RITEE

REBER

RITEX

Annual Report 2007

B R R MR

—BRLEER

BE-FTLF=AS+-BLEE

20. 168 (&

REEE  FAEEZEEDUFEEETE

2= (KT E33) fEHE R -

EEZERMNEXGBE (THEERETHZH

2006

—ZTRE

)T
RE
2007
“ETLE
Fixed Floating Fixed
Rate Rate Rate
EE Z8 EE
4.13% t0 5.29% = -
4.13E £5.29E
1% to 3.87% Prime rates in 5.06% to
1EZ387E Singapore +0.5% or 5.42%
HIBOR (1 month) + 1%
R B S A = 5062 %
MO.SEHE B 5.42F
(-8R /TR
FEMIE
6.50% - 6.50%
6.50E 6.502

Floating
Rate

28

5% 10 6.7%
SEZ6.7E

Prime ratfes in
Singapore +0.5% or
HIBOR (1 month) + 1%
R BB =
MOSE A%
(@A) RITRE
REME
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated

30.

106

in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Canadian dollars
Singapore dollars
Japanese yen

BT
s
0% T
BT

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their

fair value.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

GROUP

The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as

follows:

Total minimum lease
payments

Due within one year

In the second year

Future finance charges
on finance leases

Present value of finance
lease liabilities

Less: Portion due within
one year shown
under current liabilities

Non-current portion included
under non-current liabilities

REMEEFIEAR

—FREH

E—F

MEHERRU BRI

BEBHNEERE

woOREBARET

SIASERBEEZ
FERB D

|

B=

29.

BHRME

—BELESASH—AILEE

B8 (&

EEZRERATIIEE REMN

Group Company
rEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE | ZZ2EREF| ZBELE | 222 RF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FE T FET FE T
24,926 27,728 - -
7,985 8,008 - -
87,919 27,325 - -
57,126 - - -
177,956 63,061 - -
BEECEEOEEEAFYERSE -
30 EmERERIE
KE
BEHEETHERENSTAT -
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BRIEHEERIE BREHEERERE
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLF | ZTTAE | 2R LF | ZFTERE
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$’°000 HKS$ 000
FET T FET FBT
661 666 605 610
1,066 326 972 303
1,727 992 1,577 913
(150) 79 = _
1,577 913 1,577 913
(605) 610)
972 303
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 30. BB EEERIE (&)

The Group entered into finance leasing arrangements for
certain of its office equipment and motor vehicles. The
leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen and Singapore dollars. The average lease term is 3
years. During the year, the average effective interest rate
was 6.1% (2006: 6.7%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed
at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entfered into for
contingent rental payments. The leases do not have
options to renew.

. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

GROUP

The convertible debentures were issued at discount by a
subsidiary of the Company, eBanker USA.com Inc. on 26
May 1998, bearing interest at a rate of 10% per annum,
which is payable half-yearly on each 1 February and
1 August, with a nominal value of US$6,690,000
(HK$52,091,000) and will mature on 1 August 2008. The
debentures are not callable prior to maturity. These
debentures are convertible intfo shares of common stock
of the subsidiary at a conversion price of USS5 per ordinary
share of the subsidiary. There was no movement in the
number of these convertible bonds as at the balance
sheet date.

The convertible debentures recognised in the balance
sheet are calculated as follows:

ARRMEETHAERBIETLHEM
W&k - ZFEBQUET - BE R T
REM - FHEOBMABIF - £ BERF
BENEROINE(ZZEEXRE  67E) - F
BRNETDREHBHEE - MEEANHER
BEEH BYBITHXAEEMNKE
B HEWEBNHBRIERE o

. AT IR (& 5

REE

Al B & % B AN A A i B A 7 eBanker
USA.com Inc.R— A NANFRA=Z+/NBIZ
g7 HEBRKBI0E  5F+FN_A
—HENA—BERKRBE — X ZEEA
6,690,000 7t (52,091,000/& 7T.) * Wi KR =
SENENA—BEH - ZEEHETERE
HIERIELE @ ARz EB AR SRERERS
ELzEBREERAZNBAR 2 LEE -
REEH  ZSBRRES 2B LEEMR

REEBBERERZAIBRKRES D EN
™

2007 2006
—EELHE ZTTRF
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
FET FE T

Fair value of convertible REPAIRRES 2 AFE

debentures at beginning

of the year 48,577 47,567
Equity component (note) Wz 5D (B aE) - =
Liability component BEHMm 48,577 47,567
Interest expense (note 7) MEZH (HfzE7) 8,737 6,930
Interest paid EXREIES) (7,080) (5.920)
Liability component at 31 March R=ZA=+—BzaE&%m 50,234 48,577
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

31.

32.

108

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (continued)

Note:

In accordance with HKAS 32, convertible debentures are required
to split between liabilitiy and equity components, on a
retrospective basis.

As the inferest rate of 10% per annum of the convertible
debentures approximated the market interest rate at inception
of the convertible debentures for a similar financial instrument
without the conversion option, no equity component of
convertible debentures was recognised accordingly.

Interest expense on the convertible debentures is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 14% to the liability component.

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

31

AR ES (E)

Kiat

RIBEB G ERFEI2W - ATARESFAREPE
EmEln SR ERESHD -

B A B 3R B (8 25 2 4F ) 3% 1 0J& 2 — IR 3f 4 A 4 R
BREZACSHE T AR LA BRRESRF 2T 57
RIBE  BMUERBAIRRES 2 ERSDMD

MR ES 2 FEH S B ESRHRERFEE
RA14%2 BB RGHH o

DEFERRED TAXATION 32, IEFEBI I8
GROUP RE
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities NTHASBERCEZELCHIBAE :
recognised by the Group are as follows:
Fair value gain Other taxable
on investment  Revaluation  Withholding temporary
properties  of properties tax  differences Total
REMEZ H A fERR B
AT EREH ERRY/ES BHHE IRER Fob
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$*000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2005 RZZETHEMA—H — — 1,014 496 1,610
Charged/(credited) to na/ GrA) kb
income statement (note 9) (H#£9) 609 - (1,014) - (405)
Charged to equity ME#ER - 1,705 - - 1,705
At 31 March 2006 RZZEZRF=ZA=1—H 609 1,706 - 496 2,810
Acquisition of subsidiaries BAKBAR 6,138 - - - 6,138
Exchange realignment A 397 - - - 397
Charged to income e kEE (1729
statement (note 9) 12,814 = = = 12,814
At 31 March 2007 RZEZEtE=A=+—H 19,958 1,705 = 496 22,159

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences of HK$230,161,000 (2006: HK$208,992,000) and
HKS$44,698,141 (2006: HKS$5,449,000) respectively. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit
stream. The whole amount of estimated unused tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

WEER - AEED R B G RE)BBIAES
18 2 E AT 40 B B = §5.230,161,0007 7T

— T TN F : 208,992,000% T ) &
44,698,141 7T (Z T Z X4 : 5,449,000/
7o) © MARAES E B ZE M AHR - A&
SR IR I B Al T N AR B = AR R RE T
BIREE - bt AD AR BB R B EA
ERHAEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statement Bt 1§ W & MY &
For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-HA=T—HLEE
32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 32 IEERIIE (&)
COMPANY ¥ NN
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities recognised RARARFBERZELEREEBEZEZBHOT ¢

33.

by the Company are as follows:

At 1 April 2005
Charged to income statement

At 31 March 2006, 1 April 2006
and 31 March 2007

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Fair value gain
on investment

properties Total
REMHEZ
AFERE st
HKS000 HK$ 000
FET FET
RZZTZERFHEA—H - -
08 WK 196 196
EA_? = /\flE H + H
—EEREFNA-—HK
—EELF=A=+—H 196 196

33 EEHEM

GROUP rEH

As at 31 March 2007, the Group pledged bank balances BAf TE+F=A=1+—H  AKEEHFE
of HK$4,385,000 (2006: HKS4,219,000) as a security for 45 2 4,385,000 7t (= & T /X F
banking facilities granted to a subsidiary and as securities 41219,0005% JL)  MEBETWE AR ZIR
for credit card business transactions with MasterCard TR E - K&{EAEMasterCard Worldwide

Worldwide (note 24).

MERAREBRZXZER (HiE24) -

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s borrowings of R_ZTBETE+F=A=+—H0 A5EEE

HK$177,956,000 (2006: HK$63,061,000) (note 29) are 177,956,000 7t (ZZ Z /< F : 63,061,000

secured by: FE7T) (MT3E29) SALA T A = 4K 38

(a) its leasehold land and buildings (notes 15 and 16) (o) PR E 432,580,000/ 5t (=& T /X
with carrying value of HK$32,580,000 (2006: & : 32,134,000 ) < HE i R &
HK$32,134,000); = (15 16)

(b) its investment properties (note 17) with carrying value (b) BRMEE &262,100,000/% T (Z 2 ZF X
of HK$262,100,000 (2006: HKS51,369,000);  : 51,369,000 7T) 2 % B W (M

17)
(c) its bank balances (note 24) with carrying value of (c) BRMEEA4,3850008 7L (ZTZT/RF :

HK$ 4,385,000 (2006: HK$8,990,000);

8,990,000/ Jt.) 2 iR 17 45 #& (B 5k 24)

(d) assignment of rent of an investment property; and (d) BEEHE—HEEME &

(e) a floating charge over the asset of a subsidiary. (e) MBRRIBEEZFEEM -

109
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

34. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: )iiﬁ&% :

At 31 March 2006 and 2007 R-TEF=A=1+—H

Issued and fully paid: BEITRAREA

At 1 April 2006 R-TZEMA—H

Exercise of 2005 Warrants 11 1E4§§ hERRE
subscription rights (note a) ER ﬁ%% ( /‘/752 a)

Exercise of 2009 Warrants AE_ZTNERRE
subscription rights (note b) BERERE (/Tﬁu?{b)

Exercise of 2006 Warrants TE_ZT R ERRE
subscription rights (note c) ERBE (Kc)

At 31 March 2006 and 1 April 2006 R-TEF=A=1+—H

L=ZZZR EMA—H

Exercise of 2009 Warrants AE_ZTNERBE
subscription rights (note b) FEREE (itb)

Exercise of 2006 Warrants ﬁ, ZENFRRE
subscription rights (note c) HREBE (Hztc)

Exercise of share options o

At 31 March 2007 R-EZ+&=A=+—H

(a) 2005 Warrants

At the extraordinary general meetfing of the
Company held on 19 April 2004, the shareholders of
the Company approved a bonus issue of new
warrants (2005 Warrants”) exercisable on or before
31 May 2005, to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on 16 April 2004 on the basis
of one 2005 Warrant for every fen shares held by
such shareholders. Pursuant to which 151,811,795
units of 2005 Warrants were issued to the shareholders
of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HKS$0.20 per share as a result of the bonus issue of
new warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, registered
holders of 2005 Warrants exercised their rights to
subscribe for 57,276 ordinary shares of the Company
at HK$0.20 per share. As at 31 March 2006, the
Company had 151,736,723 units of 2005 Warrants
outstanding.

The remaining 151,736,723 units of 2005 Warrants
lapsed on 31 May 2005.

110

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

34. IR
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
BREE EEREE 2
HKS HK$ 000
BT FAET
0.01 1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.01 1,626,118,672 16,261
0.01 57,276 1
0.01 332,844 3
0.01 10,463 -
0.01 1,626,519,255 16,265
0.01 5,183,015 52
0.01 117,086,651 1.171
0.01 6,000,000 60
0.01 1,754,788,921 17,548

(o) —ZZZLFRARER

RAARR=ZZFTZTWFM A+ N BETR
RBERRE » @ EAQRBRELERR
—ETPFE A +NHBINARRRE
ZMZBREAFBETAIR_EZTRER
A= + B ZAi{TE 2 RBREE

(=T RFERARER]) BRERZSE
Hx?ﬁﬁ‘f’ﬂxﬂx@—ﬁﬁﬁi =TT
Eﬁﬁf’ MERE o BRI AFBITHRK

THN iﬁio 20/%7EZ%D§HLE§F
[AR Mﬁ%%ﬁfﬁm 811,795(p — =

gﬁiwuﬁX*’Eu

BE-TTAFZAS+ALEE -
—TTx 5%%%2%%%%Aﬁﬁ

BF 2N - REA0.2078 TR

EAR

A]57,2768% & B - E’\fyy/\i H
=t—H  ARRAHEARTEZZ

AERBRHEE51,736,7231)

R~ 2151,736,723% = F

o

ﬁi u/u

BEER-_ZZAFAA=1+— EIQE

X e



Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) 2009 Warrants

©

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of
directors on 16 August 2004, the Company approved
a bonus issue of new warrants (*2009 Warrants”) to
the shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of members on 5
November 2004 on the basis of one 2009 Warrant for
every ten shares held by such shareholders. Pursuant
to which 162,593,106 units of 2009 Warrants were
issued to the shareholders of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.09 per share as a
result of the bonus issue of new warrants. The 2009
Warrants will expire on 30 September 2009.

During the year, registered holders of 2009 Warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe for 5,183,015 (2006:
332,844) ordinary shares of the Company at HKS$0.09
per share.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
outstanding 156,894,336 (2006: 162,077,351) 2009
Warrants exercisable on or before 30 September
2009. Exercise in full of such warrants would result in
the issue of 156,894,336 (2006: 162,077,351) additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

2006 Warrants

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of
directors on 3 June 2005, the Company approved a
bonus issue of new warrants (*2006 Warrants”) tfo the
shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of members on 15 July 2005
on the basis of one 2006 Warrant for every ten shares
held by such shareholders. Pursuant to which
162,649,225 units of 2006 Warrants were issued to the
shareholders of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HKS0.16 per share as a result of
the bonus issue of new warrants. The 2006 Warrants
will expire on 31 July 2006.

During the year, registered holders of 2006 Warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe 117,086,651 (2006:
10,463) ordinary shares of the Company at HKS0.16
per share.

At 31 March 2006, the Company had outstanding
162,638,762 2006 Warrants. Exercise in full of such
warrants would result in the issue of 162,638,762
additional ordinary shares at HK$0.16 each as af 31
March 2006.

The remaining 45,552,111 units of 2006 Warrants
lapsed on 31 July 2006.

Annual Report 2007 e
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34, A (&

®)

©

—EENERRAER

BERZZZNFNA+ABZEEE
EMAZER  ARAERR-ZTZN
F+—ARABRIKRRELM2AARR

AT 7 2% TT’F)T AR EF ([ZETNEFER
[REE])  EEAZERREEFE TR
& 10 A] 2 — 1’7}7 TNERBIEFE ©
Bt AFBITHRAREZEBRER
0O%%TEZ?)JinﬁﬁFﬂﬁi’&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁf

7162,593,10610 — T = N\ & Rk #&
& —ETRNFRAREERNR_ZTTH
FAA=TRHER -

FR - —ETNFRREBZ2EREER
ATTRRE 2N - 2 EA0.098 TR
AR RF]5,183,0150 (ZEZE /N :
332,8440%) & @A -

75/\\‘13 B - AR FH156,894,33617 (=

TRE 1 162,077,.35117) AR =FF
ﬂiﬂﬁ =T BRZAIITHEZ MARTTE

TENFRZHEFE ?f_%lﬂ'fiu/(—rm‘
Hx HEEBE AR DA E I EAT
156,894,336f% ( — 2 £
162,077,3513%) G R EEO.01 T2 &
AR °

*Eﬁﬁfiggﬁizxﬂ AzESS
RER - AR Tﬁt/ﬁﬁﬁA777£¢
+tATHBRIRREM 2 AR RRE
ARBTHRRESR ([T REFRK
EE]) - BAE %Eiﬁﬁﬁiiﬁﬁ‘f“” %
T —Mi?‘f*hf??/\i RARHERE ©
AL B AT R R B B !Hx
0.16§%ﬁ2?ﬂﬁub\ﬁ§fﬁﬁzﬁ AR R B
T ]62 649 2261 —EE RN FERMK#E
& e 7/\ﬂ5w{JHX$g;ﬂH‘fﬁA—z 2N
fﬁtﬂ +—HE®M °

ER —ETERERAREZZ2ELHEER
ATTEREZ R - =25 8R0.165 TR
BEARAF]117,086,6510% (BT /N4 ¢
10,4630%) 3@ A% ©

RZZBZERF=A=+—H ' ARQAFAHF
162,638,7621p AI{T IR 2 W RATE =&
BRERRER - RZBBRF=ZA=
T— A BRITEZSERREE B ERE
RA AIFEINEE1T 162,638,762 & Ik {F
BO.16BTT 2 E@AK o

#RN45,552, 11110 ZZE T RNFRRIER
ERZZZERFLA=ZT—HBER
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d) On 7 August 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000

unlisted warrants at the issue price of HK$0.03 per
warrant to Mr. Chan Heng Fai, an executive director
of the Company. Each warrant carries the right to
subscribe for one new share of the Company at initial
exercise price of HKS$0.17 per new share, subject to
adjustment for, among other things, subdivision or
consolidation of shares, right issues, extraordinary
stock or cash distribution, and other dilutive events,
at any time during a period of 5 years commencing
from the date of issue of the warrants. Consideration
of HK$5.16 million was received in respect of warrants
issued during the year. During the year, none of the
warrants has been exercised.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

112

(a) Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to eligible persons
who confribute tfo the success of the Group’s
operations. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended. Eligible persons of fthe
Scheme include any employee, executive or officer
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
executive and non-executive directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) and any suppliers,
consultants, agents, advisers, shareholders,
customers, partners or business associates who, in the
sole discrefion of the board of directors of the
Company, have contributed to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted is such number of shares which, when
aggregated with shares subject to any other share
option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from fime to time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any fime. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

B R R MR
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REZZZERFNALR  RARAREEH
RIEFEO.OIB LM AR ATESER
18428 4 4 %% 17 172,000,00015 FE L T 2
iR - SORBERR THAAER
BRRERBETARFEFA - ROF
TRESK0I7ET (ATEE (EhE
") B A A 6 - HE - BRI
SRS DIRSEEMEEEZE 2 ERM
WHE) REBADE K - FABME
TR REE S W ES,160,0008 7T °
FA - BEIREZETE -

35 R AESTE
(@) &RAF

R-ZZEZE=FAANA  KARFERAE
R tEst 8 ([RE ARt 81) -

B E ERRTHAREEBK
SREMBERZEEMALETRERE
B o MRIEXKEEIER - B RIBBRE
At % AR —BEARI0F  EhE
HEMESEBALBEARAESS
ERBR/YUARA R,/ REEFMER
78 BT B B2 A1 B 3 A fa] i B8 2 7
ZEMES - THRABXSAEBE (8
AR B o E AR B A B 2 #1T R 3F
MITESR) REFEER - FABM -
RI2 - BRE - BRER TP AaBATE
BRHSE -

RIBEAERT S - ATRe R 2 BIREY
Rz BB - EERHE b E R S
Rz RN - &xZ NS EBIBARE
TR B BITARA10% « PAE(A 1218 A 8
BRI REERET SRS EMALTE
TR EB LR - ARR RHE(AEE
ERTRMI%ER - £—FTRIEES
Z IR AR A R BCR R
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or fo any
of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HKS$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, and
commences on a specified date and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share opfions is
determinable by the directors of the Company, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of the grant, which must be a frading day;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five frading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by
the Company in the share premium account. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of oufstanding
options.
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MARBES  TE2THRAE  TBR
RAEMFEEF2BEA TR L BRE
BABRSARABIIFNTEREZER
BUAE © LESN - FEAEMD 128 A HIME - W
RRARMEAIEEZBRFBULIFATES
HAEMRE B EA LR ETBBAR
RENERF BB BT 0.1%2 B
R AR R R R B H 2 B
=t & 48 (578 385,000,000 7T - Al 4 A
EEMERRNBRREANSGHA -

e 2 2 BIERI VIR 2 A IR - &
BABREMARINE2ERESRTE
o REBREZTERDAEEE
E o BAEERHEE NERIESERGE
BHER0OFRBREEERASZ
REEHIE -

BREZTEENVAARREREE -
ERAFERATRSE : OARRKN
REZEEAH (BEAAR S B) RER
FrE R HERMAREHE @ (HARFR
MREEE2RE B EERS B R
B RRERABRTIGEHE K
(AR B RRMEE -

REEREREITER - ARR &Rt
172 B AD R B An EESIMEREIMNAR A » T
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

114

(a) Company (continued)

The following table discloses details of the
Company’s share option in issue under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

31 March 2007
“BRtEZAZT-H

Name or

category of parficipant

SEATHARER

Directors
Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mss. Chan Yoke Keow

Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Mrs. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joco Paulo
Ms. Chian Yat Ping

Sub-total

Employees and others
In aggregate

Total

Weighted average
exercise prices of
share options

iz
REE%E

REfLt
RitExE

BRERL
B
I5RRE
Da Roza Joao Paulorz £
5Tt

Vst

EERAM

i

it}

EREMETY
il

Share
opfion
type

BRESRH

2004(5)
2008(c)

B R R MR

#z-%T%

— ==

THF=ZA=t—RBLLFE

35 BIRERTE (&)
(@) A (&)

TRFEAREFAREERE SR
BT 2 NN BB

Number of share options
BREYE

Outstanding Granfed Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
af during during during at 31 March

1 April 2006 the year the year the year 2007
RZEERE RZEBLE
A-R =h=1-A
AR ERRH RN EnfE GES ik

(note)

15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
147,000,000 - - - 147,000,000*
- 120,000,000 - - 120,000,000
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
35,000,000 = - - 35,000,000*
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2,000,000 = - = 2,000,000

- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
245,000,000 127,000,000 - - 372,000,000
37,200,000 - - (6,000,000) 31,200,000
- 18,000,000 (2,000,000 - 16,000,004
37,200,000 18,000,000 (2,000,000 (6,000,000) 47,200,000
282,200,000 145,000,000 (2,000,000) (6,000,000) 419,200,000
0.1613 0.1566 0.1616 0.1616 0.1597
Hiat : FRRITEBRKE R B 2 BRENE

Note: The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise of share options during the year is HK$0.1616.

3,000,000 share options were outstanding as at 1 April
2006 granted to Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel ("Mr. Lee”)
was reclassified from category “Directors” to
“Employees and others” as Mr. Lee is not an
executive directors of the Company during the year.

FHRME R0.1616E T °

REIBEZRFOA-BRTFTERRE
4 ([F 54 ]) 23,000,000 i R 17
EEREEASBBRESEIEE
[MBEREAM])  tETERFARFE
EWFERRRRITES °
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35 BIRERTE (&)
(@) A7 (&)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

31 March 2006

Number of share options

ZEEREZB=1-H BEREHA
Granted Llapsed  Outstanding
Name or category Share option Outstanding at during during  at 31 March
of participant type 1 April 2005 the year the year 2006
RZBELE R-BERE
A-H =B=1-H
SEATHALER BRESR B R AT FRRY ERRA o R AT
Directors B2
Mr. Chan Heng Fai RERLE 2004(a) 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
2004(b) 147,000,000 - - 147,000,000*
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REFLL 2004(a) 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
2004(b) 35,000,000 - - 35,000,000*
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BAELE 2004(b) 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
Mrs. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann BREZL 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEEEE 2004(b) 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel FRBEE 2004(b) 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter TEREE 2004(b) 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao PauloZt & 2005 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Sub-total N 246,000,000 2,000,000 - 248,000,000
Employees Eg
In aggregate Bt 2004(b) 35,500,000 - (1,300,000 34,200,000
Total Ay 281,500,000 2,000,000 (1,300,000) 282,200,000
Weighted average exercise BEREMETY
prices of share options fife®E 0.1614 0.1500 0.1616 0.1613

Details of the share options are as follows:

Share option type

Date of grant

BREZFEOT

Exercisable period

Exercise price

5 IR 7 3 = A H A F 17 2 5 TEE
2004 (a) 1 November 2004 1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.16
—ETmFE+—HA—H —ETEF+—HA—HZE 0.16% 7T

—T—=%RANH
2004 (b)* 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1616
—ZETNFE+—A+HH —ZETNFE+—HA=Z+HZE 0.16167 T

—T—=FAANHR
2004 (b)* 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HKS0.1616
—ETFE+—A+AA —ETNFE+—AZF+HE 0.1616/ 7T

—E—=%RANH
2005 27 May 2005 29 May 2005 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.15
—EERFRAA=+tH —EERFRAAZTABE 0.15% 7T

—ZE—=%hA\H
2006 (a) 22 May 2006 22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 HKS0.1566
—EEXRFRA=-1+=H —ETRFRAZTZHE 0.15667% 7T

—T—=%AANH
2006 (b) 21 December 2006 30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1566
—EERNFE+ZA=Z+—H —EEEF-A=1+HE 0.15667% 7T

—T—=F1ANH
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

116

(a) Company (continued)

*

The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited revenue of the Group on
any financial year during the life of the Options was
not less that HKS1 billion, which is calculated based on
the accounting policies and presentation adopted by
the Group at the date of grant of option and the
preparation of the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2005.

# The exercise of these options was according to the
following schedule:

a. 20% of the option shares be exercisable at the
date of acceptance and

b. the balance will be exercisable in equal yearly
installments over 4 years with the first installment
commencing 1 January 2006.

The vesting period of other share options is the period
from the datfe of grant until the commencement of
the exercise period.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
384,520,000 (2006: 261,680,000) remaining exercisable
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining exercisable share
options were represented to subscribe for 384,520,000
(2006: 261,680,000) ordinary shares in the Company
at HK$66,946,520 (2006: HKS45,532,320).

6,000,000 (2006: Nil) share option was exercised
during the year.

The fair values of options granted were determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Significant
inputs intfo the calculation included a weighted
average share price of HK$0.1566 (2006: HKS0.1616)
and exercise prices as illustrated above. Furthermore,
the calculation takes info account of no future
dividend and a volatility rate of 3.3745% (2006:
4.4046%), based on expected share price. Risk-free
interest rate was determined at 5.04% (2006: 4.19%).

The underlying expected volatility was determined
by reference to historical data. No special features
immanent to the options granted were incorporated
infto measurement of fair value.

In total, for the year ended 31 March 2007, employee
compensation expense amounted to HKS$1,049,000
(2006: HKS1,587,000) has been included in the
consolidated income statement which gave rise to
additional paid-in capital. As at 31 March 2007, the
estimated fair value of the option granted which was
recognised in the employee-share based
compensation reserve, amounted to HK$3,121,000
(2006: HK$2,133,000).
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35 BIRERTE (&)

(@) ZIK" 8 (&)
TREZEEREZHSGRERAEE
REBRERMBAEMPRFEEZL
EREETFELRI0EET - R
BASERBRERDE A RNER
BE_ZTTAF=A=+—"BLFE
BB RREFERAZ B
RRENHTAFE -

# ZEBREDRBEOTERRTE

a. HA20%EREAREAE BT
&

b. BTFZBRERROFRNGES
MBI - H—BTE MG
FEAF—A—AMH -

HitsE s BB DEm XL ARET®
HFEmEE A EARE -

REEH - BREBREFIHAQFERLE
R 1T 52 2 B8 R HE 42,8173 384,520,00017 (=
TTIRF : 261,680,00010) © BEATEEER T
A T AT 2 B HE - BN /S LA66,946,520/% T

Z T T XF ¢ 45,532,320 ) R B
384,520,0000% (= T = X : 261,680,000
B RR R E B

F A B 17 £ 6,000,00017 fE iz 7 (= 2 2R
£ )

IR BRE 2 A TFEDREFDEEER
HETE - ZRAGTAZERIER BFENEF
IR B0.15668 7T (ZZZ X4 : 0. 1616}%
T0) R E X 2T EME o WS ZEE
Mt ABRITERE RERNBRKREFEZ
R 3.3745% (Z BT R F : 4.4046%) ° T
[B B F = T3 F &R 5.04%( = F T X F ¢
4.19%) °

HEZBERRBEID2RBATEZEIRERE -
REBRE2AEREEMARTFEZFTE
A o

HE-_ZTTZLtF=A=+— Eﬂzir B8
f{E R X A ££1,049,0008 7L (ZZEE/NEF -
1,587,000 7t) Bt AfRE W=k - B
EXBINCEHRRE RZZETLF=A=
+—H  EUROKIATFREEZHERETR
TSR 4% ) B AR 4 2 (5T A 1B & 3,121,000
BT (ZZEZT/RE ¢ 2,133,000 7€) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Subsidiary

eBanker

In January 1999, the board of directors of eBanker
authorised the eBanker 1999 Incentive and
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, with effective from
18 January 1999 through 17 January 2009, unless
sooner terminated. The eBanker’s board of directors
granted to certain eBanker’s directors, options fo
purchase 620,000 shares of eBanker’'s common stock
at US$3.00 per share, exercisable immediately and
for a period of ten years.

The following table presents the activity for options
outstanding as of 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006:

Directors 5%
Employees EE8
Total “aEt

The following table presents the composition of
options outstanding and exercisable as of 31 March
2007:

Options Outstanding

i R 17 60 B AR #E
Number of

share options Price*

BRERE i

Uss$s

e

Total 620,000 3.00
st

*

Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise
price and weighted average remaining contractual
life respectively.

There was no movement in share options granted by
eBanker and no share option was exercised by the
grantees for both years.
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35, R RESTE (&)

(b) KB A F
eBanker
R—HhAANE—F  eBankerg £€ %
e #1TeBanker1 99942 @) [ 3E A TF B A%
WS BRIERATARL - BRIA—AN
hE—A+N\BRE-_ZETHAE— A+
+ HIFHAB AR - eBanker& € A%
FeBanker£ £’ TR - AIAER
3.00% 7t 2 (B 1% R B eBanker 620,000
REBR  ZSEREITHZARTE
MATfE o

TREINR=_ZFEZLF=A=+—HBK
—EERNF=A=T—HRERTERER
*’E/\Zt:ilﬁ'

Number of

share options

at 1 April 2005,

31 March 2006
and 31 March 2007
—_ZEZZTRFEMAB—H
NE=ZA=+—HR
E+LtF=H=+—H
ZBERESE

R
—z=
=%
600,000

20,000

620,000

TREJINR-_ZBELF=A=+—HZRT
0 R Al T 17 e BB AR A AT

Exercisable Options

A F 47 5 08 IR A
Number of

Life* share options Price*

THEE BREHE B

Uss

e

fill 17 Jonuory 2009 620,000 3.00
BEE-TTNF

—RA+tH

* B8 RATEH 2 B R R I04E F 1917 (2 8 K fn

RMEFEER - eBankerd® iz 8 i # 15 &
&8 - AR A INESTE T BARAE o
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36. RESERVES

GROUP

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 38
to 39 of the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2006 and 2007, investment revaluation
reserve represents aggregate changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets, while assets revaluation
reserve represents change in carrying amount of owner-
occupied property when it becomes an investment
property that will be carried at fair value.

B R R MR
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36. f#1E

EE
RAFERELFE  AEBEZHEERLEE
2R BMREIBEIVA Z AR
KA e

RE=ZZToER =T £ = H=gp—
REEHMBREIHEESREEZAFE
BoeE MEEEMARFAEREEBRYEK
RBRATEIRZRENER ZRAEE
) o

COMPANY ¥ NN
Employee
share-based
Share  compensation Warrant  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
A9 % A
TEEZ AREE
B isfE HERE it 2itEE @t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAT FET FiT FET Fix
At 1 April 2005 R-ZZTRENA—A 704,522 546 - (390,043) 315,025
Issue of new shares upon BT EAFIRRER

exercise of bonus warrants 1 47 H &

(notes 34(a) to (¢)) (H3E34(a)Z(c)) 39 - - - 39
Profit for the year EEEF - - - 51,300 51,309
Employee share-based BREANRAZATFEER

compensation expenses 2 FERR

recognised - 1,687 - - 1,587
At 31 March 2006 R-EEXE=ZA=1-H 704,561 2,133 - (338,734) 367,960
Issue of new shares upon BT EAFIRRER

exercise of bonus warrants 1 47 H &

(notes 34(a) to (c)) (B E34(a)Z(c)) 17,977 - - - 17,977
Issue of new shares upon BT EE R I

exercise of share options M & {7# &k

(notes 34(a)) (KzE34(a) 910 - - - 910
Issue of warrants FARARER - - 5160 - 5,160
Loss for the year FEER - - - (3,183) (3,183)
Employee share-based BRANBRA XM T

compensation expenses EEZRERX

recognised - 1,049 - - 1,049
Transfer to reserves upon  EEVEEREM

cancellation of options BHEE - (22) - 22 -
Transfer to reserves upon AT RER

exercise of options BHHEE 2] (21) = = =
At 31 March 2007 W-2B+E=B=+-A 723,469 3139 5,160 (341,895) 389,873
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
GROUP

(@

®)

as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases payable by the Group are as follows:

— %
F_EZFERF (B

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases a number of rented premises under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period
of three months to two years (2006: two to four
years). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of investment properties
which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F RN
In the second to fifth year inclusive HE-ZFHF (8

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17)
under operating lease arrangements which run for
an initial period of two to five years (2006: one fo
five years) (2006: average terms of five years), with
an option to renew the lease terms at the expiry
date or at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective tenanfs. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

COMPANY

The Company does not have any significant operating
lease commitments or any minimum lease receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2007
and 31 March 2006.

EERME)

HEEREME)
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7. REHERH

“BBLEER

rEE
(o) ERAHEA
REZER - AEBIREE T3 HEER
PAGEIE: €= F SR ONIN SOI=KE SR P
SEBEERBELOT :
2007 2006
—EE2LHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F#E T
4,966 2,690
3,518 2,026
8,484 4,716
AEERBEEHONERAE THEY

X - ANV RB=EAZME (=F

TRF MEEMF)
BEIABEE -

(b) EBHBEA

REER - AEEREET
ZAABEHIREYELER

o BEEEAE I AH A

%) B & i
“maER A

BRUWHR 2 HIEBEFKELOT

2007 2006
—ETLHF —EERF
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET
7,318 1,282
8,114 3,092
15,432 4,374
AEERBCERNTHALHEEEY
= (MEE17) - ZSHEOZVZHEAM
FERF(ZEZTRF: —EZRHF) (=
TERF : FTHAPAF)  WHEER
HEEmASAEEESHEEEEHE
ZBERBAD - ZEHOTESL A

e -

¥ N/NEC |

RZZET+EF=A=+—HEZZEZF=

A=+—H ARARBETARHEZLZH

WA EBEMERN2MEEEEME
WER 2 fE o] R AH & 5008 -

TR FE B UL
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
GROUP

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

balance sheet date:

Contracted but not provided for
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Undertaking of SingXpress Ltd.’s

Rights Issues

COMPANY

The Company does not have any significant commitments
as at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities of the
Group and the Company were as follows:

(a) Guarantees given tfo a
financial institution in
respect of banking
facilities granted to a
supplier of the Group

(b) Guarantees given fo a
financial institution
in respect of banking
facilities granted to
subsidiaries

B R R MR
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38, BEAEKIE

The extent of the facilities ufilised as at 31 March
2007 by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$80,833,000

(2006: HK$29,922,000).
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KE
AEBRBEEB ZEREAEDT -
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$°000 HKS 000
FHETT FAETT
BRI AEREE
HEME 62,372 65,349
M - BERHK 809 92
A HESingXpress Ltd.
Z IR ELT 35,020 -
98,201 65,441
¥ NN
ARABR_ZEELF=A=+—HBEK=
NE=ZA=+T—BWEEMRERNFKIE -
39. HAREE
REBRARFRRGEEB ZXABEET ¢
Group Company
rEE KA F
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EZLE | 2T RF| Z2ELE | ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FBT FET FET
ABETAEEZ
HERZRITHE
I B 765 1
1 i B4R
11,423 10,730 - =
RETHERAZ
RITRLE (M) B 7%
W E L B R
- - 92,957 37,064
BEz—_ZTZ+F=A=+—H8 WBRAE
&) {5 & 80,833,000/ T (— T T /N 4F

29,922,000/ 7T) °
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES(continued)

(c) Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and
CASH Retail Management Group Limited (formerly
known as Pricerite Group Limited) (tfogether referred
to as “Pricerite”) respectively against a subsidiary of
the Company in respect of the alleged breach of
agreement for damages which are not quantified. In
the opinion of the directors, after taking info account
the legal advice from the Group’s lawyers, it is not
practicable at this stage to determine with certainty
the outcome of the litigation.

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes ("Defined Contribution Scheme”) for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong and Singapore. The
assets of the Defined Contribution Scheme of Hong Kong
are held separately from those of the Group and are
under the conftrol of frustees. Where there are employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
conftributions, the conftributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The
assets of the Deferred Contribution Scheme of Singapore
is regulated and managed by the Singapore Government.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at
the rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group in respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the confribution payable in the
future years.

The retirement benefit scheme confributions arising from
these schemes charged to the consolidated income
statement represent conftributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2006: Nil).

Annual Report 2007 ¢ —ZTZT+HFFR

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=+—-HBLFE

39.

40.

HAREE (&)

© EBREESERRARREERIIER
ERAR (AIBARERKREARA 7)
(R ER]) RIERERRE - 25
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WAFEE BRER EERR LR
$%I¢%Z£¢“ﬁé Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ

EBERRER

RARER T E
AEERERBBRIMKEERESREH
i%#*ﬁ%hﬁﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

BERERFTEZEEARTARNEE
éé FEA - fMiESNERSZBHRANR
izt &) - 02 WA SR AT A DARE A8 6= (B e A<
ZHEK - ﬁMﬁEﬁ HRET 2 EE B
KHRFEE RE

BE-ZFETET_HA— Et AEEBER
PrEEEZ2 MMMt AEEFE (Hﬁi &t
2 - ﬁﬁuﬁaaﬁfﬁﬂ& &5t E
Bl - RGBS EE @E&ﬁ E=
%%%%ZﬁéﬁﬁixﬁAM%@ﬁtﬁ
AEBEEDHTHR - REBEBESAIZR
8 BEREEERARAEE 2L ERE
B - AEERRESFEZE—BER
Rz at 8l 2 R R - MO MR ERAT A BA
AR R R E A 2 4E5K -

ZE R B E L 2R IRE AR Bl RN AR A 1R
wmARME - REASEERZ S 2
MRENTESZHRGFTE -

FALEERFOZE (ZFTRF - &) -

121



Xpress Group Limited ¢ $3EEBHR QA

Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

471. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Year ended 31 March 2007 (@)
During the year, the Group acquired three
companies, details as follows:

On 27 June 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Nihon Kotsu Travel Service Co. Ltd.
("Nihon™), a company operating as a travel agency
including corporate travel and both domestic and
overseas leisure travel in Japan.

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

4. %S4t

BE_SE+E=A=t+—HL=F
E
FRNAEEBRB=M2QF  FBEMm
™~

RIBEXNEANA-Z+HR  KEBEWK
8 Nihon Kotsu Travel Service Co.
Ltd. ([Nihon]) Z 100%R& A » 1t A B4
EIRITALZETS - BIERAKREN KRB AR
2 AN Rz S b S R 8 o

0) Acquiree’s Fair value
carrying amount
WWER 2 REE AEE
HKS 000 HKS ‘000
FBT FET
Cash and bank balances RITEFRES 363 363
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 885 885
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M e W FKIB 27,656 27,656
Taxation 1A 300 300
Borrowings P (1,322) (1,322)
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H fh fE 5 3R I8 (24,511) (24,511)
Net assets acquired g EEFE 3,371
Purchase consideration settled in cash  UBRE&ST N Z2EERE 8,953
Cash and cash equivalents FIERB AR zRE R
in subsidiaries acquired ReEEIEHE (363)
Cash outflow on acquisition WBEEZHEESRE

The acquired businesses contributed revenues
of approximately HK$155,262,000 and net loss of
approximately HKS7,154,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisition to 31 March
2007. Due fto a lack of HKFRS - specific data
prior to the acquisition of Nihon, pro forma profit
or loss of the combined entity for the complete
2007 reporting period cannot be determined
reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill
are as follows:

8,590

HUBRE_ZTTLF=A=+—8H
FEBEBERSRAKEEHRERAD
165,262,0007% 7T 2 Y A K %97,154,000
BT ZBEFE - MR KENhonl I
BEBUBBRERNZHERE - Ra
HERBRE[A_ZZLFE2HBB2HE
Z Uz R N EE Al SEHLORTE o

kB EEFERBEFEDOT :

HKS’000

FAETT

Purchase consideration settled in cash  UHE&SXNZEERE 8,953

Fair value of net assets acquired FIEEEFEZATE 3.371)
Goodwill g R
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41, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

(i

On 21 July 2006, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd.
("Sapporo”), a company operating inn and
hotel in Japan.
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(o) BEZ=ZZTtF=A=+—HILHF
E (&)
(i) RZZTEEXRFEFLA=-+—8" XK
% & Uk BE Sapporo Holdings Co.
Ltd. ([Sapporol) Z 100%/& 7N -
HEBABCEIRERBE °

Acquiree’ Fair value

carrying amount
W 2 REE AEE
HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances RITEFTRES 506 506
Investment property & 20,390 35,735
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th e W FKIB 1,463 1,463
Deferred taxation IR E R IR - (6.138)
Trade and other payables B 5 &EH M FEKIA (22,045) (22,358)
Net assets acquired g EEFE 9,208
Purchase consideration settled in cash  AB & X2 EEKE 16,196

Cash and cash equivalents in FRERER ARz REe &

subsidiaries acquired ReEBEIEE (506)
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEEAZHERT 15,690

The acquired businesses contributed revenues
of approximately HK$2,015,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$947,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2007. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data
prior to the acquisition of Sapporo, pro forma
profit or loss of the combined entity for the
complete 2007 reporting period cannot be
determined reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill

HKBBEE-_TTLtHE=ZF=1
—B - FTRBEBAREEER
492,015,000/ &t 2 W A K& 4
947,000/ T 45 & o B » KB
SapporoRl I #& & 74 B 7% 3k & %
Az EHIE  MAEHEEBRE
E_ZTLF2RPEZ2EER
IR TRE T SEHORTE ©

iz EEFERBEFBEN

are as follows: TS
HKS 000

FET

Purchase consideration settled in cash AR &t 2 EERKE 16,196
Fair value of net assets acquired FrEEESBE 2 A TE (9,208)
Goodwill HE 6,988
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41, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

124

(i) On 3 March 2007, the Group acquired 52% of

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

41, EBE 6t (8)

() BE-ZEZLtF=A=+—HILHF
E (&)

the share capital of Makino Air Travel Service
Ltd (*Makino”), a company operating as a

fravel agency in Japan.

Cash and bank balances

Property, plant and equipment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Taxation

Financial assets af fair value
through profit and loss

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Net assets
Minority interests of Makino

Net assets acquired

Purchase consideration settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiaries acquired

Cash outflow on acquisition

(iy R—ZEZ+FE=A=H ££H

I B Makino Air Travel Service
Ltd ([ Makinol) 52%8% 7~ « 1tk A&
Al A — B AT ©

Acquiree’s Fair value
carrying amount
WWE S 2 REE NEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FAETT
RITEFRE R 9,587 9,687
MZE - BEREZE 1,495 1,495
AHEEemEE 1,485 1,485
B 5 & H h fE R FRIE 21,776 21,776
i I8 (65) (65)
BERAFEFAERZ

L EE E 3,781 3,781
B (14,474) (14,474)
B 5 & H hfE kI8 (21,518) (21,518)
BEFE 2,067
Makinoz 2> £ % 3 # & (1,007)
Fri i & =5 E 1,060
PRSI 2 BERE 700

FKERBE AR 2RE R
ReEEIEE (9.587)
WHEEE 2B SR (8.887)
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41, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

(iiiy  (continued)
The acquired businesses did not conftribut

revenue or result to the Group for the period

from its date of acquisition to 31 March

Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to
the acquisition of Makino, pro forma profit or
loss of the combined entity for the complete
2007 reporting period cannot be determined

reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill

are as follows:

Purchase consideration settled in cash
Fair value of net assets acquired

Excess of the Group’s interests in the
net fair value of acquiree’s
idenftifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost

(b) Year ended 31 March 2006

On 3 June 2005, the Group acquired 87% of the

capital of Tarron Holdings Pty Ltd, a company
operating as a travel agency and inbound tour
operator. Due to a lack of HKFRS-specific data prior
to the acquisition of Tarron Holdings Pty Ltd, pro
forma profit or loss of the combined entity for the
reporting period cannot be

complete 2006
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41, B E 6 (8)

() EE=FF
B (&)
@iy (4&)

AKkBERAZE_ZSTELHF=A=1
*EI Elﬁuﬁlﬁﬁiﬁkliﬂ%ﬁ‘i
HRAEMBARELS - ERER
zqﬁlﬁﬁMokanH 7 B 7S R A
Blz e E &R - B AP ST
/\Gﬂé/\ﬁ“ REE-Z=ZLFE2
MEAEzBEE RN HKEE -

FtF=A=1T—HLLF

e any

2007.

BEFEMBEHBNOT :

HK$°000

FE T

NS NZEBENRE 700

R EEFEZ A FE (1,060)
SEE R UEE 5 2 1R

BEEBERIARAE

B A FFERE RS KA

(360)

b) BE=_ZZ~"F=A=+—HILHF
=3

share R-ZEZRFNA=H - $EIW$—

FEAS & A TR 0 (38 | K3 B 8 B v 2

Al Tarron Holdings Pty Ltdz 87%/%
A o B R R U EE Tarron Holdings
Pty LtdRl & 7 Bf 75 ¥ &5 % A 2 36 7& &
}F AR EEE A R B RN ERE
ZEERNFEEMERE 2 EZE = E

determined reliably. =)
Details of the net identifiable liabilities acquired and T r AR B EFEREE 2B
goodwill are as follows: FIa T
2006
—EERF
HKS 000
FET
Purchase consideration RBEeNzBEERE
settled in cash 596
Fair value of net liabilities acquired FkEaEFE 2 ATE 56
Goodwill (note 22) = (Bt aE22) 652
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

126

(b) Year ended 31 March 2006 (continued)

Net idenftifiable liabilities arising from the acquisition

are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment
(note 15)

Receivables

Payables

Net identifiable liabilities

Minority interests

Net identifiable
liabilities acquired

Purchase consideration
settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents in
subsidiary acquired

Cash outflow on acquisition

B R R MR
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41, £BE 6 (&)
b)) BE—ZEEAF=ZA=+—HILHF
E (&)

WHMEL Z AR EFEDT

Acquiree’s
carrying amount Fair value
WU B T 2 BRI #R NFE
HKS$ 000 HKs$ 000
THET TETT
RekBHeEEER 512 512
W - BB RZE (HE15)
47 47
JRE U 7R IR 48 48
J& 1 3R IR (744) (6495)
AHEREEEE (137) (38)
DY R Ew (18)
Ff U B8 7T 8 5l & B 0% HR
(56)
NEENzBERE
596
I EREB AR Z RS
kR EMERE 612)
WEELE ZRRH
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Notes to the Financial Statement Br 7% 8 = M &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTtF=-PA=1T—HLEE

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 42. HEME QT
Year ended 31 March 2006  E_EEANFE=ZA=T—HLEEE
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group HE_ZTTZRE=-A=1T—"HIFE  &&
disposed of its entire interest in a subsidiary, GMT at a BLHEEMRBARGMT 228HER - RE
consideration of HK$95,856,000. The fair values of net #95,856,000% 7T - RIHEGCGMTEH + A&
assets of GMT attributable to the Group as at the date of BERCMTHELM 2 EEFBEAFENT :

disposal of GMT were as follows:

2006
—EER
HKS 000
F#E T
Net assets disposed of & &EFE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB k& 2,468
Cash and bank balances R & RIRITEER 7.477
Trade and other receivables, B REMEKKIE  BFEI£
deposits paid and prepayment PSS E 25,609
Trade payables, accruals and BSREMNRIE - BB R
other payables H A FE 1~ RIE (41,921)
Goodwill EES 7,891
1,624
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR Z K 94,332
95,856
Satisfied by: SFAE
Cash BH& 95,856
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMBARzREeRREEEERRAF
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BEAOMWT :
2006
ZTTRF
HKS 000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE 95,856
Cash and bank balances &R e RIRTTEEH
disposed of (7.477)
Net inflow of cash and cash HEMBRARIZEE R
equivalents in respect of the REeEBEEBEERAFE
disposal of a subsidiary 88,379
The impact of GMT on the Group’s results and cash flows CMTH 78 & B 7N B KR B 2 4 R 3R
in the current and prior periods is disclosed in note 10. EMZEBEHBERKEEIO -
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

43. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant post
balance sheet events:

128

(@

®)

©

(@)

On 1 April 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party fo
acquire the entire infterest of Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya,
a company incorporated in Japan which operates a
hotel business and the shareholder’s loan for a total
consideration JPY220 million (approximately
HK$14,586,000). The acquisition was completed on
21 May 2007.

On 18 May 2007, SingXPress International Pte Ltd, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered info an agreement with a property
developer in Singapore fo purchase a property
located in Singapore (the “Property”) for a
consideration of $$6,900,000 (approximately
HK$35,190,000). An initial deposit of $$690,000
(approximately HK$3,519,000) was paid by the Group
and the balance of the consideration of $$6.2 million
(approximately of HK$31,671,000) will be paid upon
completion in August 2007.

The Group intends to use the Property as the Group’s
office premises for the operations in Singapore and
will let out any excess space for investment
purpose.The Group intends to settle 30% of the
consideration of HK$10,557,000 by cash and the
remaining 70% of consideration of HK$24,633,000 by
bank loans. Details of the acquisition has been
disclosed in the circular dated 7 June 2007.

On 11 May 2007, an indirect 35.03% owned subsidiary
of the Company, eBanker USA.com, Inc. (*eBanker”)
offer a right issue to its shareholders on a pro-rata
basis at a price of US$0.25 per rights share on the
basis of ten rights shares for every three eBanker
shares held by the shareholders of eBanker on 26
May 2007. The Group applied excess rights shares
and fthe interest in eBanker was increased from
35.03% to 81.84% upon completion of the right issue
on 19 June 2007.

On 28 May 2007, the Company has obtained all the
necessary regulatory approval and the Cerfificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong and the name
of the Company has been changed from “China
Credit Holdings Limited” to “Xpress Group Limited”
with effect from 28 May 2007.

B R R MR

BE-FTLF=A=t+-BLEE

43. FEBRRSE

BB T5 R Bl BE PR BE & O

REEGETT

N TBEREERKER :

(o)

®)

©

(@

R-ZEZ2LFNOA—H AEEEFT
SE=T3RI A - WHER B AN AL

4R EOH T 2 7% 2 Kabushiki Kaisha
AizuyoZ EESRRRER - BREA

220,000,000H (%7 14,586,000/
) cWEER-ZZLFRA =+ —
B °

R=ZEZFTtFRA+/N\A A2 FIEE
= K ¥ B M B A& @ SingXPress
International Pte Ltd. £2 7 0 3% ih &=
BRI e 0 WL F N 2 ¥
¥ (M%) » B E%6,900,000% 10
7t (4935,190,0008 7T) ° AEEE fF
690,000 N3 7T (493,519,000 7T) 1E
B FiR e - R {E & 5 6,200,000% 10
T (#931,671,000/8 7T) MR —EZE+
F)\AEHREFHL o

NER B T B 7 A W) 3 1 R AN S B 3T N3
EBRZRAETAE - e HARGM
BEERERS - AEETEUBE SR
30%fK1E 10,557,000/ 7T © MIASRITE
SR TR £2 70% (B 24,633,0007% T °
WiEE— P HBEHRARAE=ZZZT L
FRNALBHZBXE -

R_ZZLFRA+—H8 AR AIME
A 35.03% 1 = 1 fi1 B A 7] eBanker
USA.com, Inc([eBanker| )R H %R &
KRBT - RERERARD0.25 T
B BT - A% BeBankerli R R —
TET+FRA-T+AABERE=ZR
eBankerf& 5 Al 3388 T AR AR AR 17 o A<
SEHFERBBEERRS  MRZZ
TLENATABEBRERE HR
eBankerz # #z B 35.03%3% i =
81.84% -

RZZZELFRA=-F+N\H  ARAEE
ESMAVASENE  MBBARE
MEEHELEREHEMES  AQH
ZFHER _ZTTEFREA-_T/\HER
[hEEEEERRAR]EWA R
SEBRAA] -



Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

43.

44,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (confinued)

(e) On 29 May 2007, the Group has entered into a letter
of confirmation with a security house in Japan to
study the feasibility of applying for a secondary listing
in Japan.

® On 1 June 2007, the Group enfered into an
agreement with an independent third party fo
acquire the entire interest of Hotel Plaza Miyazaki
Co. Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan which
operates a hotel, for a consideration of JPY 300million
(approximately HK$19,890,000). The acquisition was
completed in July 2007.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group’s activities expose it to
a variety of the following financial risks:

44.1 Market price risk

The Group is exposed to market price risk for those
equity securities and debt securities which are
classified in the consolidated balance sheet either
as available-for-sale financial assets or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are
susceptible tfo market price risk arising from
uncertainties about the future prices of the
instruments.

44,2 Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counter parties failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assefts is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order
tfo minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group review the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment loss are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counter
parties and customers.

|

B=

43.

44,
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BH R M

—BELESASH—RILEE

EERERSBE (£)

(e) R—ZEZ+FRHA-+HIHB AEEHE
AXREBEER I ERE  AERA
NEFEE - EHHAAEITY -

H R=ZZTZLFXRA—HB AEEEBL
E=FRIN W - WE—ER B AR
3 2 A &l Hotel Plaza Miyazaki
Coltd.z a8z - ZARKEBE
%7 URBE A & 5300,000,0008 [E (4
19,890,000/ 7T) - WHEER =TT £
FEAZTK °

EEEBRERBE

AEEEERBRERTEFIES @™
BELRF 2 ERH  LSKEERELAAE
EHBERAZEETNEE - AEE XK
EAREEAZTIERAR

441 WS ERE R
REBAFE T2 THERERKERA
BEREBES  DRRABEAREE
AHEAAHEESREESRRATE
HAERZEMEE ASBEBRHT
TR ERARAYE  HZZEERA
MREZET A RRERER TR
EHEEMmMELE -

442 & E

2N £ [ R 41 F 75 R A FE 1T L 3 A M AR
ERSRAIERASCHEE R EE
AR AGAEEABRRITLZSEEY
REE - ARERECERR  KEE
B ERSEE B BHER G2 K
Bl &% - AREREERE S EEDR
W AR - LTS FEERE
AEBZEERBREBEZRD o

AEEYEBEZEPZEERR - mA
HEBEDHEZZHFIRER -

129



Xpress Group Limited ¢ $3EEBHR QA

Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

44.3 Liquidity risk

B R R MR

BE_TZLF-A=1+—-HBLFE

44. B EBBERBE (&

AA3RBES AR

130

The Group invests in both listed and unlisted
securities. Those listed securities are considered
readily realisable as they are listed in regulated stock
exchanges. Those unlisted securities may not be
fraded in an organised public market and may be
illiquid. As a result, the Group may not be able to
liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments
at an amount close fto their fair value in order to
meet its liquidity requirements or to respond to
specific events such as deferioration in the
creditworthiness of any particular issuer. The Group’s
liquidity risk management includes making available
standby banking facilities and diversifying the funding
sources. The Group regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure it has adequate financial
resources in meeting its financial obligations.

44.4 Cash flow and inferest rate risk

The Group is exposed fo risks associated with the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its financial position and cash
flows since the Group has significant interest-bearing
assets and long-term borrowings issued at variable
rates. Management monitors the related cash flow
and interest rate risk exposure closely and will
consider any derivative financial insfrument, where
necessary, should the need arise.

44.5 Currency risk

The Group has certain financial assefs and financial
liabilities denominated in currencies other than HKS.
The Group is therefore exposed to currency risk, as
the value and foreign currencies will fluctuate due
to the changes in exchange rates. Management
monitors the related currency risk exposure closely
and will consider any hedging of significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

44.6 Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the immediate or short
term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair
value of non-current financial liabilities closely
approximates their carrying value.

REFRRER LT RFLTMEZS -
HRZELTBLFEXBREZLBLFRS
FrEm - ﬁﬁ(%ﬁﬁ?’f‘;%ﬁ“fﬁf’& 3 E
MEFARELIEFRNERTE 2 ARTS
BB BURBEA TR - At A&
E e A AR L ETARFEZR
BAREERNMETAZIRE  AERM
AEEZRBES T T O ERFEEH
(P ERFEERTAZEEKER
t) c AEBEZRBESRAREEBE
ZHIRHEEBARTHRERIHEEZR
R AEBTEHERNEFZESHKNR -
LA (R VE 7B 2 50 B 75 B IR LA FE A~ H B 7%
A -

UMABREHRERRNRE R

HRAEEEAEREMEEERIKZR
BT RAEES  AUEANSEERENS
AR RIR &R E T EAXE B Rl m %Al
$*$&§waﬁﬁ2ﬂk°aﬁﬁr

RERFHRESRELFERRAR - L&
ERNERZERKAEMITESRT
B o

4455 A K

AEEEETRTMINEEIEZ SR
BERERAR - AN 2BERE
HE R B KRR B - ANEE R E S
BE¥RRE - EEEBREERAHERR
B - WG NMERZEBRERNZIMNE
[\ Bk T #E 1T (E e 20 o

44.6 A ¥ 1E

AEEeREERABZATEAERR
EETESKER ‘%ﬁlﬁt”fﬁﬁ‘%Iﬂ
BRI HERAE S - JERE
BZRFEAMEREKREE -



Financial Summary

Results

Revenue/Turnover

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable fo:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities
Total assets

Total liabilities
Minority interests

Shareholders’ funds

%4
IEYEES
FRER/ (BR)
fif

AR RBRIEHEA
b BB S

FEE/ (FE)

EEREE

BERE
iR R

&l

i Gy

9\

BRES
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MBEERME

For the year ended 31

¢ SEBLEEH

March

BE=ZA=+—HLEE
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

27 (E51)
2007 2006 2005

689,184 529,327 295,501

(&31) (B3
2004 2003

SEFLEF “FTEAF “FEHF —FEMF —FF=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET  FHET  FET

HKS'000 HKS 000
FE T FAETT

75,186 95,876

16,081 102,544 (17,180) (110,098 182,076
40,112 53,138 (13,466)  (108,838) 190,447
(24,031) 49,406 (3.714) (1,260) (8.371)

16,081 102,544 (17,180)

(110,098) 182,076

As at 31 March
R=B=+—H

2007 2006 20056
“EELF —TTARF
HK$°000 HK$"000 HK$’000
FET TET TET

923,583 650,856 622,684
(355,976) (161,007) (245,715)
(39,024) (60,732) (10,000)

2004 2003

—TETRFE —ETNFE —_TE=F

HKS$'000 HK$"000
FE T FAETT

474,595 567,803
(108,837)  (103,687)
(11,799) (8.922)

528,583 429,117 366,969

353,959 455,194
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Particulars of Major Properties

As at 31 March 2007

Location
i B4

Investment properties 1% & ) %

Strata Lot 7, 1281 Alberni Street,

Vancouver, British Columbia,
Strata Plan LMS3094,
Canada

981 Nelson Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, Canada

No. 35 North Canal Road,
Singapore

Units 3B, 4, 5A, 7, 8, 9, 5/F
Island Place Tower,
510 King’s Road,

North Point,
Hong Kong

BB AKREBES105%
BB NESE

3B-4-5A-7 8 9%

Apt 671-180-012-013-014-
015-016-017-018 in
Riverside County,
California, U.S.A.

Car Parking Spaces Nos.
22, 23, 24 on Lower G/F.,
Inverness Villa,

No. 22 Inverness Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NBELE X 1E T B 225
FE X Rl EF b T
22 - 23+ 245K B fi]

Hokkaido, Sapporo-shi,
Chuo-ku, Minami 1-jyo,
Nishi 15-chome, 1-238.

Land and Buildings =+ i1 42 5

Units 1-3A, 5B, 6, 10, 5/F
Island Place Tower,
510 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
BEILAREBES105%
BEANESEZ
1-3A > 5B 6+ 10=

132

Gross Area
REE

1,572 sq ft
1,672F 5 R

9,537 sq ft
9,537F 5 R

4,843 sq ft
4,843 7 IR

6,403 sq ft
6,403 5 IR

67.5 acres/
2,940,300 sq ft
67.581
2,940,300F 75 R

30 sq m/
322 sq ft
30F A K
322F 5 R

3,209 sg m
3,209 75 K

13,687 sq ft
13,687F 5 R

Effective
% held
BEREERE (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TENFBE

R-FRLF=A=1-8

Type
# Al

Apartment
BAT

Single-storey
ground floor
school/office unit

BEM T 2R,

WA
Office premises

NELYE

Office premises
N/

Vacant land
T=E T

Car parking space
B

Hotel
B E

Office premises
WREYE

Lease term
pizl|

Freehold
KA N

Freehold
KA FEE

Medium term lease

HEAAE A4

Medium term lease
FHAFE 4

Freehold
KA S

Medium term lease
FHIFE 4

Freehold
KA FENE

Medium term lease
FHAFE A
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